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1. Economic and financial statement 

The synthesized economic and financial statement at the end of the 1st half of 2015 is 
disclosed as follows: 

 
  a m f , debt and shareholders’ equity (Balance items):) State ent o  assets   
                                                                                       - RON - 

INDICATOR BALANCE AT END OF REPORT PERIOD: 
 June 30th, 2014 December 31st, 

2014 
June 30th, 2015 

FIXED ASSETS 
I. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 
786,758

 
680,762 537,432

II. TANGIBLE ASSETS 12,162,594 11,855,615 11,811,136
III. FINANCIAL ASSETS 952,397,696 954,556,059 969,472,639
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 965,347,048 967,092,436 981,821,207
CURRENT ASSETS: 
I. INVENTORIES 

 
60,902

 
59,423 63,294

II. RECEIVABLES 9,586,305 5,005,616 23,614,485
III. SHORT TERM FINANCIAL 
INVESTMENTSx) 

 
-

 
13,004,974 9,641,586

IV. CASH IN HAND AND BANK 
ACCOUNTS 

 
17,401,769

 
22,577,118 35,240,686

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 27,048,976 40,647,131 68,560,051
PREPAID EXPENSES 234,206 123,386 246,550
TOTAL ASSETS 992,630,230 1,007,862,953 1,050,627,808
DEBTS TO BE PAID WITHIN ONE 
YEAR (TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES) 

92,507,551
 

83,471,863 107,171,280

DEBTS TO BE PAID WITHIN MORE 
THAN ONE YEAR (TOTAL) -

 
- -

OTHER PROVISIONS 8,544,800 159,577 159,577
TAX PROVISIONS (registered 
through reserve accounts) 

53,942,038 51,411,418 50,593,722

CAPITAL AND RESERVES: 
1. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID IN 
SHARE CAPITAL 

 
218,428,666

 
218,428,666 218,428,666

2. TOTAL RESERVES, out of which: 610,733,366 603,140,874 629,735,194
   2.1. – legal reserves 21,842,867 24,409,521 24,533,728
3. EXERCISE RESULT 
    - PROFIT, out of which: 

 
8,473,809

 
53,817,209 44,539,369

   3.1. – reinvested profit (own 
financing sources) 

 
x

 
x x

6. PROFIT DISTRIBUTION - 2,566,654 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' 
EQUITY 837,635,841

 
872,820,095 892,703,229

TOTAL LIABILITIES 992,630,230 1,007,862,953 1,050,627,808
                

x) The cash availabilities placed in bank deposits are presented under position “IV. CASH IN HAND AND BANK 
ACCOUNTS” and detailed in Notes 12 and 15. 
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 During the first semester of 2015, the company assets, evaluated at book value (historical 
cost corrected with the impairment adjustments, the revaluation of fixed assets and with the 
adjustments for the value loss of financial assets within the inventory as at June 30th, 2015), 
increased by RON 42.7 million in comparison to the end of the previous year, out of which: 

1) Fixed assets increased by RON 14.7 million. The explanatory notes accompanying the 
half-year financial statements include details regarding the fixed assets (note no. 1). 

The portfolio of shares registered in the 1st half of 2015 had the following evolution: 
a) Shares worth RON 52.8 million entered the portfolio, as follows: 
• Acquisition of shares listed on Romanian stock exchange (B.V.B and Rasdaq) = RON 45.9 

million; 
• Shares purchased on foreign stock exchange = RON 6.9 million; 
b) Shares worth RON 39.78 million were removed from portfolio, as follows:  
• sales/liquidation, by affecting costs (expenses related to financial investments sold) 

 = RON 38.1 million; 
• share capital decrease of the Romanian Clearing House and Fondul Proprietatea  = RON 

1.6 million 
• removal from portfolio of certain shares as a result of finalizing the liquidation of certain 

companies from the initial portfolio, with reduction of reserves (without affecting costs) 
= RON 0.08 million.  
2)   Current assets increased by RON 27.9 million, out of which: 
 2.1 receivables increased by RON 18.6 million; 
 2.2 cash and bank accounts increased by RON 12.7 million; 

2.3 financial investments decreased by RON 3.4 million. 
 The explanatory notes accompanying half-year financial statements include details 

regarding receivables (notes 5, 13 and 14) and bank accounts and cash in hand (note 15). 
3) Prepaid expenses increased by RON 0.1 million. 
4) Debts registered by the company at the end of the first half of this year amount to RON 

107.1 million, RON 24 million more than at the end of last year, the increase being generated by 
the dividends that will be distributed this year.  

From the current debts in balance as at June 30th, 2015, RON 103.4 million (96.55%) 
represents dividends due the Company’s shareholders, out of which RON 36.9 million are 
dividends unpaid to some of the company’s shareholders until the reporting date, from the ones 
distributed from the profits made by the Company in financial exercises previous to 2012 and not 
required for payment by beneficiaries. 

The structure of current debts in balance as at June 30th 2015 is presented in the explanatory 
notes 5, 17 and 18. 

5) The Company does not have loan contracts and debts maturing in more than one year, 
registered as at June 30th 2015. 

6) Compared to last year's end, the shareholders’ equity as at June 30th, 2015 is RON 19.9 
million higher, the increase being generated mainly by the increase of reserves. 

Changes registered in the 1st half of 2015 in the shareholders’ equity items are presented in 
detail in the “Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity as at June 30th 2015”, statement 
accompanying the half-year report (page 13). 
For the comparability of the data with the similar period of last year, the report herein includes the 
“Statement of changes in shareholders' equity as at June 30th 2014” (page 12). 
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 b) Structure of assets 
 
 The structure of assets held in portfolio as at June 30th 2015 is the following: 

 
VALUE  

 
  ASSETS 

BOOK VALUE *) 

(historical cost) 
CALCULATED VALUE **) 

 RON thousand % RON thousand % 
TOTAL ASSETS, out of which: 1,050,628 100.00 1,203,266 100.00
1. SHARES AND FUND UNITS, total, out 
of which: 949,706 90.66 1,095,059 91.01

1.1. – listed  768,902 73.40 927,924 77.12
1.2. – unlisted 180,804 17.26 167,135 13.89

2. CORPORATE BONDS (not-listed) - 
including interest 24,012 2.29 29,462 2.45

3. MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS (in 
RON and other currencies – RON 
equivalent) including interests, out of 
which: 35,241 3.36 35,241 2.93
3.1. Bank deposits 34,159 3.26 34,159 2.84
3.2. Bank accounts and cash in hand  1,082 0.10 1,082 0.09
4. OTHER ASSETS (tangible, intangible 
and financial assets, receivables, 
inventories, accrued expenses, other assets) 41,669 3.69 43,504 3.62

 *) Net values diminished by adjustments for loss of value as at June 30th 2015.  
 **) Calculated according to the internal procedure harmonized with the NSC Execution Order no. 
23/December 20th, 2012 (includes the value of the shares purchased during the last days of June, for which 
the settlement date was in July 2015). 
 
 At the end of the first half of the financial exercise in 2015, the total assets held by the 
company, evaluated in accordance with the internal procedure reconciled with the NSC Execution 
Order no. 23/20.12.2012, amounted to RON 1,203,266 thousand, RON 55,129 thousand more, 
meaning a 4.80% increase as compared to the amount registered at the beginning of the financial 
exercise. 
 As at June 30th, 2014, the weight of unlisted companies increased to 13.04% in comparison 
to the beginning of the year, when it was 12.31%. 
 As at June 30th, 2015, the largest portfolio holdings, by their weight in the total value of 
assets (Top 10 holdings, representing 54.77% of the calculated value of assets) were the following: 
  

 
Issuer 

Calculated value of  
portfolio assets 

 (RON thousand) 

Weight in total 
assets (calculated 

(value) 
 (%) 

BANCA B.R.D. - G.S.G. S.A. Bucureşti 265,024 22.03
ARO PALACE S.A. Braşov 97,005 8.06
TURISM FELIX S.A. Băile Felix 52,838 4.39
TURISM LOTUS FELIX S.A.Băile Felix 48,728 4.05
OMV PETROM S.A. Bucureşti 43,444 3.61
S.N.G.N. ROMGAZ 38,951 3.24
ORIZONT TURISM S.A. Predeal 31,001 2.58
FEPER SA BucureştiI 29,842 2.48
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THR MAREA NEAGRA SA Mangalia 26,995 2.24
FONDUL PROPRIETATEA 25,192 2.09
TOTAL TOP 10 659,020 54.77
TOTAL ASSETS 1,203,266 100.00

 
 c) Evolution of net asset value 
 
 The net asset value, calculated in accordance to the internal procedure harmonized with the 
NSC Execution Order no. 23/20.12.2012, compared with the similar period in the previous year, 
developed as follows: 
 

ITEM RESULTS (RON thousand) as at: WEIGHT (%) 
 June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 Results 2015/ 

Results 2014 
TOTAL ASSETS – Calculated value 1,248,345 1,203,266 96.39
TOTAL DEBTS – Calculated value 92,728 107,907 116.37

RON thousand 1,155,617 1,095,359 94.79CALCULATED NET 
ASSETS  
 

 
RON/share 

 
0.5291

 
0.5015 94.78

 
d) Profit and loss account 

   - RON -  
RESULTS AT: ITEM 

 June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 
2015 

A. REVENUES FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY - TOTAL, out of 
which :  

 
19,266,669 96,915,840

1. - financial fixed assets (dividends and shares issued following 
profit incorporation) 

 
13,243,214 9,143,786

2. - financial investments disposed (sales, withdrawals and 
liquidations) 

 
4,429,534 86,760,164

3. - interests 1,269,470 872,983
4. - foreign exchange income 9,637 103,189
5. - provisions, bad debts written off and subsequently collected and 

sundry debtors 
 

44,076 6,971
6. - other revenues 270,738 28,747
B. EXPENSES FROM CURRENT ACTIVITY - Total, out of which 
for: 

 
10,792,860 49,000,777

1.- financial investments disposed (cost of sales, withdrawals, 
liquidations) 

 
730,794 38,142,046

2.- commissions and fees 1,692,665 2,261,524
3.- amortization, provisions, bad debts written off and sundry debtors 380,489 775,423
4.- banking and related services 8,789 11,009
5. - foreign exchange losses 68,719 138,358
6.- personnel (salaries, indemnities, incentives from profit sharing 
fund, insurances and social security) 

 
5,930,732 5,574,087

7.- third party services 1,117,169 1,097,487
8.- materials, energy, water 231,309 193,068
9.- taxes, duties and similar charges 632,194 807,775
C. RESULT OF CURRENT ACTIVITY- PROFIT  8,473,809 47,915,063
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D. REVENUES FROM EXTRAORDINARY ACTIVITY  - - 
E. EXPENSES FROM EXTRAORDINARY ACTIVITY  - - 
F. RESULT OF EXTRAORDINARY ACTIVITY   (Profit +, Loss -) - - 
TOTAL REVENUES 19,266,669 96,915,840
TOTAL EXPENSES 10,792,860 49,000,777
G. GROSS RESULT – PROFIT 8,473,809 47,915,063
Tax profit - 3,375,694
H. NET RESULT – PROFIT 8,473,809 44,539,369
I. RESULT PER SHARE (RON/share)  

0.0039 0.0204

 
 In comparison to the results obtained in the 1st half of 2014, the revenues increased from 
RON 19.2 million to RON 96.9 million, mainly due to the increase of revenues from disposal of 
financial investments. 
 Revenue profitability ratio (the gross profit margin) as at June 30th, 2015 was of 49.44% of 
total revenues.  

As for expenses, they increased by RON 49 million as compared to the previous year’s 
RON 10.7 million as at June 30th, 2014. The main increase of expenses is due to expenses 
generated by disposal of financial investments. 

 
e) Cash flow 

                - RON -  

RESULTS AT: ITEM 
June 30th, 

2014 
December 
31st, 2014 

June 30th, 2015 

1. Cash flows from operating activities (9,654,902) (29,992,002) (16,805,714)

2. Cash flows from investment activities 7,002,824 19,022,295 46,548,862

3. Cash flows from financing activities (8,858,196) (9,370,866) (17,079,580)

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
(25,515,922)

 
(20,340,573) 12,663,568

CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS : 
- Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
period 

 
 

42,917,691

 
 

42,917,691 22,577,118

- Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  
17,401,769

 
22,577,118 35,240,686

 
 In this year’s first half, the Company registered a positive cash flow of RON 12.7 million, 
mainly due to the increase of revenues collected in this period which were lower than the payments 
made for investments and for the coverage of operational expenses of the company. 
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f) Revenue and expenditure budget execution      
  

RON thousand 

ITEMS Estimates for 2015 Results 
 

Results 
June 30th 

2014 
total per year, 
out of which: 

1st half  June 30th, 
2015 

TOTAL REVENUES, out of which: 19,267 113,158 54,601 96,916
1. financial fixed assets, total, out of 
which: 

13,243 15,000 15,000 9,144

- dividends 13,243 15,000 15,000 9,144
2.  financial investments disposed 

(sales, withdrawals and 
liquidations) including revenues 
from speculative shares 

 
4,430

 
59,878

 
38,900 86,760

3. interests 1,269 1,280 701 873
4. foreign exchange gains 10 - - 103
5. other revenues, total, out of which: 315 - - 36
5.1. - prescribed debts registered as 

income 
 

-
 

-
 

- -
5.2. - provisions reversed to income 44 - - 7
5.3. - other income 271 37,000 - 29
TOTAL EXPENSES, out of which: 10,793 54,660 21,785 49,001
A. OPERATING AND 

FUNCTIONING EXPENSES, total, 
out of which: 

 
9,992

 
20,349

 
9,964 10,693

1. materials, energy, water 231 500 250 193
2. personnel 5,931 11,600 5,806 5,574
3. amortization 380 825 379 766
4. commissions and fees x) 1,693 3,200 1,450 2,262
5. third party services 1,117 2,984 1,249 1,079
6. taxes and duties 632 1,200 600 808
7. other expenses 8 40 20 11
B. OTHER EXPENSES, total, of 

which: 
801 34,311 11,821 38,308

1. foreign exchange losses 69 - - 138
2. cost of financial investments 

disposed (sales, withdrawals, 
liquidations) 

 
731

 
24,036

 
11,781 38,142

3. provisions, losses from receivables 
and sundry debtors 

 
1

 
10,175

 
- 

-

4. sponsorship and acts of patronage - 100 40 28
GROSS PROFIT 8,474 58,498 32,816 47,915
TAX ON PROFIT - 6,525 2,673 3,376
NET PROFIT RON thousand 8,474 51,973 30,143 44,539
 RON/share 0.0039 0.0238 0.0138 0.0204

x) Including the trading fees afferent to stock sales. 
 
The revenues registered in the 1st half of 2015 are RON 77.6 million over those obtained on 

the same date in the previous year and RON 42.3 million over the estimates in the revenue and 
expenditure budget for the 1st half of 2015.  
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The total expenses of the 1st half of 2015 amount to RON 49 million, more by RON 38.2 
million than those at June 30th, 2014 and by RON 27.2 million than those estimated in the revenue 
and expenditure budget approved for the 1st half of this year. The net profit as at June 30th, 2015 is 
of RON 44.5 million, by RON 14 million more than the one estimated in the revenue and 
expenditure budget. 
 In the 1st half of 2015 the Company focused on the portfolio restructuring by continuing the 
programs for bringing portfolio companies to the regulated market quota, optimizing the 
administration and control systems and accelerating the actions for portfolio streamlining. In order 
to ensure the funding and to streamline the portfolio, we intensified the efforts of sale the weakly 
liquid or non-liquid participations in our portfolio. The investment and portfolio restructuring 
objectives are the basis of the fulfilment, until the end of 2015, of the estimates of the income and 
expenditure budget and of the investment program approved by shareholders.  

  
 2. Company activity analysis 
 
 2.1. Presentation and analysis of trends, elements, events or uncertainty factors which 
affect or might affect the company’s liquidity, in comparison to the same period of the 
previous year. 
 At the moment there are no elements, events or uncertainty factors affecting or potentially 
affecting the Company’s liquidity significantly in a negative way.  
 The financial statements prepared for the 1st half of 2015 represent individual financial 
statements drawn up for the Company’s own activity, considering the going concern principle. 
 
 2.2. Presentation and analysis of events, transactions, economic changes significantly 
affecting the income from the main activity, in comparison to the same period of the previous 
year. 
 The revenues and expenditures registered by the company in the 1st half of 2015, as well as 
those estimated to be registered in the following period are and will be influenced by both the 
evolution of the capital market and the position and financial performances registered by the 
portfolio companies. 
 

3. Changes affecting the Company’s share capital and administration 
 For a better observance of the principles of corporate governance, the company's 
shareholders decided in the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of April 20th, 2013, the 
modification of the Company's form of administration, from a unitary to a two-tier administration 
system, as well as the amendment and supplementation of other provisions of the Articles of 
Incorporation. The new Articles of Incorporation can be consulted on the company's website, at 
www.siftransilvania.ro. 
 According to the new Articles of Incorporation of the Company, approved by the EGMS on 
April 20th, 2013, SIF Transilvania is administered through a two-tier system, by an Executive 
Board controlled by a Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board is comprised of seven members, 
natural persons. 
 In the 1st half of 2014, the company’s share capital doubled by means of issuance of new 
shares by using reserves constituted from the net profit achieved by the company in the financial 
exercise of 2013, according to the EGMS decision of April 28th, 2014, currently, the company’s 
share capital being of RON 218,428,666.40. 
 On June 23rd, 2015, the Supervisory Board took note of the change in the organizational 
chart and in the personnel structure of SIF Transilvania in effect as of July 2015, change approved 
by the Executive Board on June 23rd, 2015. 
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 Thus, according to the new organizational chart of the company specialized functions were 
transformed in services, the departments in offices and implicitly the positions of heads of 
directions became heads of service, while the heads of departments are now heads of offices. The 
changes in the organizational chart are pending the approval by the Financial Supervisory 
Authority. 
 
 3.1. Description of situations where the Company could not perform its financial 
obligations during the 1st half of 2015. 
 The Company permanently had the necessary liquidities allowing the timely payment of all 
its financial obligations. At the moment, there are no factors or events that might lead to the 
company's impossibility to respect its maturing financial obligations. 
 
 3.2. Description of any change in the rights of the owners of securities issued by the 
Company  
 The Company took the necessary steps to suspend the voting rights of shareholders whose 
holdings, individual and/or in concert, exceeded the threshold of 5% at the reference dates 
established for the ordinary general meeting of shareholders convened for April 29th/30th, 2015, 
under the conditions provided by the applicable regulations issued by N.S.C., currently FSA.  

The Company brought into public attention, through publication on its website, in the 
“Notification” section, the information of the holding declarations and/or notifications received, as 
well as the information necessary to the calculation of the 5% limit of share capital provided in 
article 2861 of Law no. 297/2004 and in article 2, paragraph (1) of the N.S.C. Instruction no. 
6/2012. 
 For the reference date of the Extraordinary and Ordinary General Meetings of Shareholders 
of April 29th /30th, 2015, the Company has not registered any cases of exceeding the ownership 
limit of 5% of the share capital. 
 
 4. Significant transactions 
 During the 1st half of 2015, shares amounting to a total of RON 52.8 million have been 
acquired and registered in portfolio, at acquisition cost. 
 In the same period, the Company disposed a number of portfolio shares (through sale or 
withdrawal from some portfolio companies) which were registered in the portfolio at a cost of 
RON 38.1 million, resulting in an income of RON 86.8 million. 
 During the 1st half of 2015, the Company did not make any transactions with its 
Supervisory Board members, Executive Board members, employees or shareholders who control 
the Company (it is not the case) nor significant transactions with affiliated parties (in explanatory 
note 10 – Other information). 

Executive President/CEO,  
ec. Mihai Fercală, PhD 

Portfolio Manager,         Financial Manager, 
Calin Dragos, PhD         ec. Ionel Radu                                     
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS as at June 30th, 2015   
                  - RON - 

 Financial year 
ITEM Previous Current 

 June 30th, 2014 December 31st, 
2014 

June 30th, 2015 

A 1 2 3 
1. Cash flows related to operating activities, total, out of which: (9,654,902) (29,992,002) 16,805,714 
1.1. Receipts from clients (including subsidiaries and creditor clients) 41,100 321,785 - 
1.2. Payments to suppliers (including subsidiaries and affiliated undertakings) and 
employees 

(6,342,377) (18,088,859) (6,420,842) 

1.3. Income tax paid (1,922,346) (3,230,816) (7,077,584) 
1.4. Contributions, taxes, duties paid to the state budget (excluding income tax) (2,802,475) (7,525,105) (2,401,373) 
1.5. Other payments or receipts related to the functioning of the Company  1,371,196 (1,469,007) (904,061) 
2. Cash flows related to investment activities, total, out of which: (7,002,824) 19,022,295 46,548,862 
2.1. Payments for purchase of shares (16,579,893) (79,654,636) (63,256,386) 
2.2. Payments for purchase of bonds (859,918) (13,663,864) - 
2.3. Payments for purchase of tangible and intangible assets (213,329) (391,420) (315,386) 
2.4. Proceeds from sale of shares 4,429,534 98,885,334 63,910,716 
2.5. Proceeds from capital refunds - - 1,574,410 
2.6. Proceeds from withdrawals - - 32,778,067 
2.7. Proceeds from sale of bonds 4,756,794 
2.8. Interests, deductions received 1,998,149 427,098 1,270,568 
2.9. Dividends received 4,222,633 13,436,137 5,809,071 
2.10. Other receipts or payments related to investment activities (exchange rate 
differences, brokerage commissions, etc.) 

- (16,354) 21,009 

3. Cash flows related to financing activities, total, out of which: (8,858,196) (9,370,866) (17,079,580) 
3.1. Dividends paid to shareholders (including dividend tax) (1,240,839) (9,370,866) (17,079,580) 
4. NET INCREASE or DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (25,515,922) (20,340,573) 12,663,568 
5. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial exercise 42,917,691 42,917,691 22,577,118 
6. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial exercise 17,401,769 22,577,118 35,240,686 

  Executive President/CEO                    Portofolio Manager    Drawn-up by, 
  ec. Mihai Fercală, PhD       Dragos Calin, PhD                          Financial Manager 
                                  ec. Ionel Radu 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
As at JUNE 30th, 2014 

(for comparison to June 30th, 2015) 
- RON -  

 Balance as at the 
beginning 

Increase Decrease Balance as at the end of  

ITEM of the financial year Total,  
out of which: 

Through 
transfer 

Total, 
out of which: 

Through 
transfer 

1st half of 2014 

A 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Subscribed and paid in share capital 109,214,333 109,214,333 - - - 218,428,666 
Revaluation reserves (Note 6 d) 10,008,385 - - 17,857 - 9,990,528 
Legal reserves 21,842,867 - - - - 21,842,867 
Reserves from adjustments for value losses of 
financial assets   (Note 20)                    – D Balance 

 
(131,700,981) 

 
24,366 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(131,676,615) 

Reserves representing the surplus from revaluation 
reserve (Note 6 d) 

 
4,555,173 

 
17,857 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
4,573,030 

Reserves created from the value of securities/shares 
acquired free of charge (Note 19) 

 
152,777,513 

 
2,295,651 

 
- 

 
415,535 

 
- 

 
154,657,629 

Other reserves, total out of which (Note 19): 471,505,695 189,705,336 189,601,212 109,865,104 109,214,334 551,345,927 
Reserves from recording at nominal value the 
initial S.I.F. portfolio (Laws 58/1991, 55/1995 and 
133/1996) 

 
121,840,024 

 
104,124 

 
- 

 
650,770 

 
- 

 
121,293,378 

Reserves created from profit, as own financing 
sources 

342,967,727 189,601,212 189,601,212 109,214,334 109,214,334 423,354,605 

Reserves created from contributions in kind 
differences (exchange) 

- - - - - - 

Other capital reserves 6,697,944 - - - - 6,697,944 
Result of the financial year C Balance   189,601,212 8,473,809 - 189,601,212 189,601,212 8,473,809 
 D Balance - - - - - - 
Profit appropriation - - - - - - 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 827,804,197 309,731,352 189,601,212 299,899,708 298,815,546 837,635,841 

  
Executive President/CEO                    Portofolio Manager    Drawn-up by, 

  ec. Mihai Fercală, PhD       Dragos Calin, PhD                          Financial Manager 
                                  ec. Ionel Radu 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
As at JUNE 30th, 2015 

   - RON -  
 Balance as at the 

beginning 
Increase Decrease Balance as at the end of 

the 
ITEM of the financial year Total,  

Out of which: 
Through 
transfer 

Total, 
Out of which: 

Through 
transfer 

1st half of 2015 

A 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Subscribed and paid in share capital  218,428,666 - - - - 218,428,666 
Revaluation reserves (Note 6 d) 9,964,912 - - 49,912 - 9,915,000 
Legal reserves 24,409,521 124,207 - - - 24,533,728 
Reserves from adjustments for value losses of 
financial assets   (Note 20) 
                                                            - D Balance   

 
(129,387,787) 

 
(4,347) 

 
- 

 
(6,944,599) 

 
- 

 
(122,447,535) 

Reserves representing the surplus from revaluation 
reserve (Note 6 d) 

 
4,598,646 

 
49,912 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
4,648,558 

Reserves created from the value of securities/shares 
acquired free of charge (Note 19) 

 
142,639,565 

 
820,073 

 
- 

 
5,112,977 

 
- 

 
138,346,661 

Other reserves, total out of which (Note 19): 550,916,017 23,822,765 23,822,765 - - 574,738,782 
Reserves from recording at nominal value the 
initial S.I.F. portfolio (Laws 58/1991, 55/1995 and 
133/1996) 

120,863,467 0 0 0 0 120,863,467 

Reserves created from profit, as own financing 
sources 

423,354,606 23,822,765 23,822,765 - - 447,177,371 

Reserves created from contributions in kind 
differences (exchange) 

2,785,850 - - - - 2,785,850 

Other capital reserves 3,912,094 0 0 0 0 3,912,094 
Result of the financial year C Balance   53,817,209 96,915,840 - 106,193,680 - 44,539,369 
 D Balance  - - - - - - 
Profit appropriation  (2,566,654) - - (2,566,654) (2,566,654) - 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 872,820,095 121,728,450 23,822,765 101,845,316 -2,566,654 892,703,229 

 
Executive President/CEO                    Portofolio Manager    Drawn-up by, 

  ec. Mihai Fercală, PhD       Dragos Calin, PhD                          Financial Manager 
                                  ec. Ionel Radu 
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ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RATIOS AND NOTES TO THE STAND ALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2015 

 
ITEM CALCULATION METHOD VALUE 

1. Current liquidity ratio1)   Current assets 
Current debts 

0.64 

2. Liability degree ratio2)   (%) Borrowed capital    x 100 
        Shareholders’ equity 

0.00 

3. Receivables turnover - clients3)  (days) Average balance of clients (total 
receivables) x 180 

Turnover 

43.86 

4. Non-current assets turnover4)   
(ratio) 

Turnover 
Non-current assets 

0.10 

5. Earnings per share (RON) Net profit 
No. of shares 

0.02 

6. Net asset value per share, calculated 
according to NSC Regulation no. 15/2004 
(RON/share) 

Net asset value 
No. of shares 

0.5015 

7. Total Shareholder Return (%)5) Closing price + Dividends -  
– Opening price x 100 

Opening price 

0.24 

 
NOTE: 
1) This ratio reflects the coverage of the current debt from the current assets.  

The recommended acceptable value is approximately 2.  
At the end of the 1st half-year, the company registered at this ratio the value of 0.64.  

2) This ratio expresses the effectiveness of the credit risk management, indicating potential financing-
liquidity problems, with influences on the performance of the undertakings assumed.  

 Borrowed capital = Credits over 1 year 
 Capital employed = Borrowed capital + Shareholders’ equity 
 S.I.F. Transilvania has not contracted any credits so the liability degree is  (zero). 
3) It expresses the effectiveness of the company in collecting receivables, respectively the number of days 

until the date when the debtors pay their debts towards the company. In the case of S.I.F.s, turnover 
represents the total revenues from current activity, and when establishing the average balance of clients, 
all net receivables from the balance have been taken into account; the most important weight is held by 
the debits resulting from dividends and their due and unpaid accessories. The value registered by this 
ratio is 43.86 days.  

4) It expresses the effectiveness of the management of the non-current assets by examining the turnover (for 
SIFs-total current revenues) generated by a certain quantity of non-current assets.  
Within the total non-current assets mentioned in the Assets statement in row 19, column 2, which are 
recorded in the Company accounts under historic cost (corrected with depreciations and adjustments for 
registered loss of value at the end of the period), the weight of the shares held in portfolio companies 
(which are in fact financial assets available for sale) represents 95.75% of the total non-current assets; 
this ratio has a value of 0.10 (current income amounting to RON 1,000 obtained in the period analyzed 
with non-current assets in the amount of RON 98.71).  

5)  SIF 3 share's closing price on June 30th, 2015 = RON 0.2460/share 
    SIF 3 share's opening price on January 5th, 2015 = RON 0.2454/share 
  
 



SIF TRANSILVANIA SA 

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30th, 2015 

14 

 

1 NON-CURRENT (FIXED) ASSETS 

 

a) Intangible assets 

 

 Other intangible 

      assets 

 (RON) 

Gross value 

Balance as at 1st January, 2015 956,561  

Additions - 

Ceded assets, transfers and other disposals - 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 956,561 

   

Accumulated amortization  

Balance as at January 1st, 2015 275,799 

Amortization recorded during the financial exercise                                                                           143,330  

Disposals or reversals   - 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 419,129  

 

Net carrying amount as at January 1st, 2015 680,762  

 

Net carrying amount as at June 30th, 2015 537,432 
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1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

  

b) Tangible assets 

 Other    Advances and 

 Technical plant, tangible 

 Land and  installations   tools and assets in 

   buildings     and machines furnitureprogress         Total 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

Gross value  

Balance as at 1st January 2015 14,356,499 1,416,237 789,064 - 16,561,800 

Additions - 248,834 8,266 257,100 514,200 

Ceded assets, transfers 

   and other disposals - 31,203 2,484 257,100 290,787  

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 14,356,499 1,633,868 794,846 - 16,785,213  

 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at 1st January, 2015 2,907,507 1,178,673 620,005 - 4,706,185  

Adjustments recorded during   

   the financial exercise  162,742 109,869 28,089 - 300,700  

Disposals or reversals  - 30,324 2,484 - 32,808  

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 3,070,249 1,258,218 645,610 - 4,974,077 

 

Net carrying amount  

   as at January 1st, 2015 11,448,992 237,564 169,059            - 11,855,615  

 

Net carrying amount 

   as at June 30th, 2015 11,286,250 375,650 149,236 - 11,811,136  
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c) Financial assets  

   
Securities 

held as Bonds Bank Shares Contributions Other non-current Total 
 non-current 

assets 
(including 

accrued 
deposits receivable 

from bond   
paid for 

share capital 
receivables (advances 

and subscriptions 
non-current 

assets 
 (shares and 

fund units) 
interests) (guarantees)    conversion increases 

and transfers 
to shares/bonds, 

 including public offers, 
 

      guarantees and  
      sureties)  
 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

Gross value        

Balance as at January 1st, 2015 1,069,994,533 41,630,932 4,195 5,072,957 - 19,000 1,116,721,617 

Additions 62,284,899 755,929 - - 9,235,667 - 72,276,495 

Ceded assets and other disposals 43,260,723 12,110,308 - - 8,935,667 - 64,306,693 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 1,089,018,709 30,276,553 4,195 5,072,957 300,000 19,000 1,124,691,414 

        

Value adjustments        

Balance as at January 1st, 2015 155,901,271 6,264,287 - - - - 162,165,558 

Adjustments recorded during         

the financial exercise 4,347 - - - - - 4,347 

Disposals or reversals 6,951,130 - - - - - 6,951,130 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 148,954,488 6,264,287 - - - - 155,218,775 

        

Net carrying amount         

as at January 1st, 2015 914,093,262 35,366,645 4,195 5,072,957 - 19,000 954,556,059 

        

Net carrying amount         

as at June 30th, 2015 940,064,221 24,012,266 4,195 5,072,957 300,000 19,000 969,472,639 

 
 

16 
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1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
The shares held as non-current assets are split according to their nature as follows: 
 

 Listed Unlisted Listed fund Unlisted  

 shares shares units fund units Total 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

Gross value       

Balance as at January 1st, 

2015  

885,884,075 158,310,551 0 25,799,907 1,069,994,533 

Additions, transfers 40,457,585 21,827,314          999,907   0 62,284,899 

Ceded assets, transfers           

and other disposals 28,044,948 215,775 0    15,999,907   43,260,723 

Balance as at June 30th, 

2015 

898,296,712 179,922,090  999,907 9,800,000 1,089,018,70
9 

           

Value adjustments           

Balance as at January 1st, 

2015 

139,481,039 16,323,059 0             97,173   155,901,271 

Adjustments recorded 

during the financial exercise 

          

(including by transfer) 7,402,401 4,347 10,868   7,417,616 

Disposals or reversals and 

transfers 

6,944,600 7,408,931 0 10,868 14,364,399 

Balance as at June 30th, 

2015 

139,938,840 8,918,475 10,868    
86,305   

148,954,488 

      

Net carrying amount            

as at January 1st, 2015 746,403,036 141,987,492 0 25,702,734 914,093,262 

      

Net carrying amount           

as at June 30th, 2015      758,357,872 171,003,615 989,039 9,713,695 940,064,221 

 
 

Non-current financial assets as at June 30th, 2015 are carried at historical cost diminished by RON 
148,954,488, representing adjustments for value losses at June 30th, 2015 created from negative 
differences resulting from the valuation performed during the annual inventory for the end of the 
2014 financial exercise, out of which RON 26,506,953 resulted from provisions created prior to 
2008 previous financial exercises (by affecting the profit and loss account) and RON 122,447,535 
created starting with 2008, directly from shareholders’ equity.  
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1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

 

The shares and unit funds are split according to their origin as follows: 

 

  Shares 

 Shares from acquired from Shares 

 initial portfolio the local market acquired  

 and related and related from external Fund 

         free shares    free shares         market units            Total 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

Note 

Gross value 

Balance as at January 1st, 2015  184,716,730 854,424,424 5,053,472 25,799,907 1,069,994,533 

Additions, transfers 0 61,032,380 1,252,519 0 62,284,899  

Ceded assets, transfers 

and other disposals 2,219,923 26,040,800 0 15,000,000 43,260,723 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015182,496,807 889,416,004 6,305,991 10,799,907 1,089,018,709 

   

Value adjustments 

Balance as at January 1st, 2015  0 154,303,423 1,500,675 97,173 155,901,271 

Adjustments recorded during      

 the financial year 0 4,347 0 0 4,347 

Disposals or reversals/transfers 0 6,951,130 0 0 6,951,130 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015 0 147,356,640 1,500,675 97,173 148,954,488 

 

Net carrying amount 

    as at January 1st, 2015  184,716,730 700,121,001 3,552,797 25,702,734 914,093,262 

 

Net carrying amount 

    as at June 30th, 2015 182,496,807 742,059,364 4,805,316 10,702,734 940,064,221 

 
 



SIF TRANSILVANIA SA 

NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30th, 2015 

19 

1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

 

Depending on the Company’s ownership percentage in the share capital of the issuers, the non-current assets are split as follows: 

 

 Shares  Securities   

 held Participating held as    Total 

 with affiliated interests non-current Fund  Other  non-current 

 entities (>50%) (20-50%) assets (<20%) units           receivables financial assets 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON)  (RON) 

 

Gross value 

Balance as at January 1st, 2015 485,633,275 80,067,446 478,493,904 25,799,907 46,727,084  1,116,721,617 

Additions, transfers - 20,188,186 42,096,713 - 9,991,596  72,276,495 

Ceded assets, transfers - 197,550 28,063,173 15,000,000 21,045,975  64,306,698 

and other disposals  

Balance as at June 30th, 2015  485,633,275 100,058,082             492,527,444      10,799,907 35,672,705         1,124,691,414 

     

Value adjustments 

Balance as at January 1st, 2015        96,314,453 1,699,526 57,790,119 97173 6,264,287  162,165,558 

Adjustments recorded during 

the financial exercise - - 4347 - -  4347 

Disposals or reversals - - 6,951,130 - -  6,951,130 

Balance as at June 30th, 2015                              96,314,453                  1,699,526                50,843,336                 97173     6,264,287             155,218,775 
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1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

 

 Shares  Securities   

 held Participating held as    Total 

 with affiliated interests non-current Fund   Other non-current 

 entities (>50%) (20-50%) assets (<20%) units  receivables      financial 

assets 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON)  (RON) (RON) 

Net carrying amount 

as at January 1st, 2015 389,318,822 78,367,920  420,703,785                25,702,734  40,462,797 954,556,059 

 

Net carrying amount 

as at June 30th, 2015 389,318,822 98,358,556            441,684,108                10,702,734                            29,408,418          969,472,639 

 

Total gross value of non-current 

financial assets, out of which:       1,124,691,414 

Shares       1,078,218,802 

Fund units       10,799,907 

Bonds       30,276,553 

Shares receivable from bond conversion       5,072,957 

Cash contribution to capital increases       300,000 

Bank deposits – warranties       4,195 

Other receivables – sureties       19,000 
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2 PROVISIONS 

In the 1st half of 2015, an evolution of the provisions was registered as follows: 

 

 Balance as at           Transfers Balance as at  

Type of provision January 1st, 2015    into account   from account June 30th, 2015 

  (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

 

Provisions for taxes 51,411,418 328 818,024 50,593,722 

Provisions for risks and 

expenses - - - - 

Provisions for litigations         159,577 - - 159,577 

 

Total provisions 51,570,995 328 818,024 50,753,299 

 

For an analysis comparative to the corresponding period of the previous year, the following evolution 

of these provisions was recorded in the 1st half of 2014: 

 

 Balance as at Transfers Balance as at  

Type of provision January 1st, 2014    into account   from account June 30th, 2014 

  (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

 

Provisions for taxes 53,553,022 366,037 136,598 53,782,461 

Provisions for risks and 

expenses 8,544,800 - - 8,544,800 

Provisions for litigations     159,577 - - 159,577 

Total provisions 62,257,399 366,037 136,598 62,486,838 

 

Tax provisions (see note 6 K 3), amounting to RON 50,593,722 as at June 30th, 2015, are those 

arising from applying the income tax rate of 16% to the balance of reserves created from the value of 

shares acquired free of charge (account 1065), of reserves created from the tangible assets 

revaluation surplus until May 1st, 2009 (account 1067), of reserves related to the initial portfolio 

from company incorporation (account 10681) and of reserves created from favourable differences 

resulting from the valuation of contribution in kind (including contributions in shares), which 

represents the company’s contribution to the increase in share capital of certain issuers (account 

10684).   
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2        PROVISIONS (CONTINUED) 

 

Analytically, the statement of these tax provisions is the following: 

 Balance as at Balance as at 

 June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

 Provisions for taxes, total, out of which:    53,782,460 50,593,722 

- related to the balance of reserves from 

the value of securities/shares acquired free of charge                               29,458,596                

26,351,745 

- related to the balance of reserves from 

  realization of revaluation reserves of tangible 

  assets              683,921 683,921 

 

- related to the balance of reserves  

from recording at nominal value the initial of  

portfolio of SIF Transilvania 

(Law 58/1991, 55/1995 and 133/1996) 23,103,500 23,021,613 

 

- related to the balance of reserves  

from favourable differences resulted from the  

evaluation of contributions in kind of the Company 

to increases in share capital of certain issuers(19(3)) 530,638 530,638 

 

- related to the income resulted from 

free shares of some companies as an effect of direct 

incorporation of the profit into the share capital 5,805 5,805 

(not yet capitalized) 
  
3           PROFIT DISTRIBUTION 

 
 Net profit that remained undistributed in the balance sheet concluded for the previous 

financial exercise, taken over as retained earnings at the beginning of 2015, amounting to RON 

53,817,209, was distributed on April 29th, 2015, according to the Decision of the Extraordinary 

General Meeting of Shareholders as follows: 

- legal reserves – RON 2,690,861 

- dividends – RON 27,303,583 

- other reserves – RON 23,822,765 

 The net profit carried out in the 1st half of 2015 was worth RON 44,539,369. 
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4 OPERATING RESULT OF THE CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

INDICATORS Row June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 
  (RON) (RON) 
    
1. Income from non-current financial assets 01 13,243,214 9,143,786 
4. Income on ceded financial investments 04 4,429,534 86,760,164 
7. Income on provisions 07 44,076 6,971 
8. Foreign exchange gain 08 9,637 103,189 
9. Interest income 09 1,269,470 872,983 
11. Other income on current activity: 11 270,738 28,747 
- from other income  16 252,500 15,803 
- from other financial income 18 18,238 12,944 
12. Income from current activity, 
 Total    
14. Expenses regarding ceded  19 19,266,669 96,915,840 
      financial investments    
15. Expenses regarding foreign exchange losses 21 730,794 38,142,046 
17. Expenses regarding commissions and fees 22 68,719 138,358 
18. Expenses regarding banking and similar 24 1,692,665 2,261,524 
services  25 8,789 11,009 
19. Losses from receivables and sundry debtors 26 561 - 
20. Provisions and amortisation expenses  27 379,928 775,423 
21. Other expenses for current activity: 28 7,911,404 7,672,417 
- materials 29 162,029 123,350 
- energy and water  30 69,280 69,718 
- employees; 31 5,930,732 5,574,087 
• salaries and assimilated 32 4,664,159 4,560,661 
• social security contribution 33 1,266,573 1,013,426 
- third party services: 34 1,117,169 1,097,487 
• maintenance and repairs 35 302,313 44,889 
• royalties, leases and rent 36 26,162 26,675 
• insurance premiums 37 61,140 75,234 
• protocol, advertising, publicity   39 25,506 73,340 
• transport of goods and personnel 40 2,942 1,179 
• business travel, transfers 41 36,234 97,425 
• postage and telecommunications 42 226,722 173,675 
• other third party services   43 346,562 441,677 
• other expenses 44 89,586 163,393 
- other taxes, duties and similar expenses   47 632,194 807,775 
22. Expenses from current activity 48 10,792,860 49,000,777 
23. Current activity result 49 8,473,809 47,915,063 
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5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE  
 

 Balance as at Balance as at Due in less 
Receivables December 31st, 2014 June 31st, 2015      Than 1 year 
 (RON) (RON) (RON) 
    
Advances for services to suppliers 
(Note 13) 17,567 17,835 17,835 
Trade receivables (Note 13) 12,892 13,423 13,423

Other receivables, total (Note 14) 5,870,378 24,799,727 24,799,727 
Total gross receivables 5,900,837 24,830,985 24,830,985 
    

Adjustments for    
impairment of bad debts:     
Balance as at January 1st  811,509 895,220 895,220 
Adjustments recorded during        
the financial exercise 106,429 321,720 321,720 
Disposals or reversals 22,7175 440 440 
Balance as at June 30th (Note 13, 14) 895,221 1,216,500 1,216,500 

Total net receivables (after 

adjustments for impairment) 5,005,616 23,614,485 23,614,485 
 

     Due  
 Balance as at Balance as at in 
Payables December 31st, 2014 June 31st, 2015 Under 1 year 
 (RON) (RON) (RON) 
Trade payables (suppliers),    

 including indemnities for Supervisory 

and Executive Boards members  
(Note 17) 377,282 575,300 575,300 
Dividends due to     
shareholders (Note 18) 76,677,316 103,401,434 103,401,434 
Debts related to staff (Note 18) 124,741 125,032 125,032 

Debts to the     
consolidated State budget (Note 18) 370,620 358,939 358,939 
Income tax (Note 18) 5,297,584 1,595694 1,595,694 
Advances from clients 440,61683 917,324 917,324 
Debts to group companies 
(subsidiaries) (Note 10) 10,922 1,960 1,960 
Other sundry creditors (Note 18) 172,782 195,597 195,597 
Total payables 83,471,863 107,171,280 107,171,280 
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5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

 

Evolution of dividends distributed to shareholders: 

 

 Balance as at Balances as at 

Dividends due to shareholders 

December 31st, 

2014 

June 3oth, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

   

Balance as at January 1st  84,973,534 76,677,316 

Dividends to be paid from the profit of the previous  

year (Note 3) - 27,303,584 

Dividends paid during current year and related tax (1,974,564) (580,711) 

Dividends prescribed – reversed to income  (6,335,370) - 

Dividends returned 13,716 1,130 

Amounts resulted after denomination   

(4 decimals) - 115 

   

Balance as at the end of the period 76,677,316 103,401,434 
  
 
6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRINCIPLES AND METHODS 

 
The main accounting policies adopted in preparing these financial statements are disclosed below: 
 

A Basis of preparation of the financial statements 
 

(1) General information 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:  
(i) The Accounting Law no. 82/1991 republished in June 2008 (“Law 82”) as further 

amended and supplemented; 
(ii)  Order of the President of the National Securities Commission no. 13/2011 for the 
approval of the Regulation no. 4/2011 regarding the Accounting regulations complying 
with the 4th Directive of the European Economic Community applicable to entities 
authorized, regulated and supervised by the National Securities Commission (“N.S.C”), 
published in the Official Gazette of Romania part I, no. 185/ March 16th, 2011 (“Order no. 
13/2011”) and in the Official Gazette of Romania part I, no. 185 bis/March 16th, 2011 
(“Regulations no. 4/2011”). 
 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
adjusted with the impairment and value losses found within the last inventory (reference 
date December 31st, 2013), except for tangible assets which are presented at their 
revaluated amount, the most recent revaluation having taken place at December 31st, 2013. 
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(2) Use of estimates 
 
The preparation of individual financial statements in accordance with N.S.C. Regulation 
no. 4/2011 requires the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
debt at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the respective period. Although these estimates are based on the best 
information available as at the date of the financial statements, actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 
 

(3) Going concern 
 
The present financial statements have been prepared based on the ‘going concern’ 
principle, which assumes that the Company will continue to operate in the foreseeable 
future. In order to assess the reasonability of this assumption, the management reviews the 
forecasts of the future cash inflows and cash outflows. 
 
Based on these reviews, the management believes that the Company will be able to 
continue to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable future, not having the intention to 
liquidate the company or to cease transactions and, therefore, this principle should be 
applied in the preparation of these financial statements. 
 

B Foreign currency conversion 

 

(1) Measurement currency of the financial statements 

 

Accounting is kept in Romanian and in the national currency. Items included in these 

financial statements are denominated in national currency, i.e. Romanian Leu (RON). 
 
 

(2) Transactions and balances in foreign currency 

 

Foreign currency transactions of the Company are recorded at the exchange rates 

communicated by the National Bank of Romania (“NBR”) as at the dates of the 

transactions. Foreign currency balances are converted into RON using the exchange rates 

communicated by NBR as at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses resulting from the 

settlement of such transactions into a foreign currency and from the conversion of 

monetary assets and debt denominated in a foreign currency are recognized in the profit 

and loss account, in the financial result.  

The assessment of receivables, debt and foreign currency cash on hand is carried out 

monthly at the NBR exchange rate for the last day of the month, and any differences are 

recorded as foreign exchange gains or losses, as appropriate. 
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C Intangible assets 
 

(1) Cost 
 
The Company holds computer software and licenses. 

 
These are recognized at purchase cost and disclosed in the financial statements at 
the net book value, respectively the purchase cost, diminished by amortisation and 
potential impairment adjustments, accumulated up to the date of preparation of the 
financial statements. 
 

(2) Depreciation 
 

Computer software is amortized over a period between 1 and 3 years, and the licenses over 
their validity period, using the straight-line method.
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6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRINCIPLES AND METHODS (CONTINUED) 

 

 

D Tangible assets 

 

(1) Cost / valuation 

Tangible assets are initially measured at purchase cost for the goods acquired in exchange 

for a consideration and at fair value for the goods received free of charge, in this case, the 

value replaces the acquisition cost. Tangible assets existing at the end of the year are 

revaluated periodically, generally every three years, with the results being reflected in the 

accounting records.  

The last revaluation of tangible assets was carried out at December 31st, 2013 by an 

authorized independent appraiser, observing the provisions approved by the NSC by Order 

13/2011, which provides that revaluation of tangible assets is made at fair value, 

determined by an appraisal normally undertaken by professionally qualified appraisers. An 

increase of carrying amount resulted from these revaluations was credited in the 

revaluation reserve. The fair values of tangible assets revalued as per applicable regulations 

are updated with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ 

materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.  

If there is no market-based evidence of fair value, it is estimated using net cash flows or 

depreciated replacement cost approach.  

The revaluation differences related to fixed assets, decommissioned and brought as 

contribution in kind to the share capital of other companies or sold, are transferred into 

account 1067 "Reserves representing realization of the land and building revaluation 

reserves ".  This reserve, properly decreased by the value taken into consideration as item 

similar to taxable income according to the provisions of the Government Emergency 

Ordinance 34/2009, is adjusted using the deferred tax created previously by applying the 

profit tax rate to the gross reserve. 

Expenditure on repairs and maintenance of tangible assets is recognized in the profit and 

loss account over the period in which they are incurred, while any significant 

improvements to tangible assets (modernization), which increase the value and/or the 

useful life of assets or significantly increase their revenue generating capacity, are 

capitalized (they increase the value of that fixed asset). 
The value of the inventory items acquired for the performance of the Company’s 
activities under normal conditions is recognized on expenditures at the moment of 
their commissioning, being followed up for the period of they use, by their location 
of use, through an off-balance sheet account. At the moment they become 
unnecessary, at the proposal of the inventory commissions or of other commissions 
constituted for this purpose, they are decommissioned, and then capitalized as such 
or deregistered and capitalized as waste. 
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6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRINCIPLES AND METHODS (CONTINUED) 

 

D Tangible assets (Continued) 

 

(2) Depreciation 

 

Depreciation is determined based on carrying value (acquisition cost or revalued value) 

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets and it is included 

in expenses on a monthly basis.  

The classification and the normal operational periods of fixed assets held by the Company 

are established by a technical commission appointed by decision, taking into account the 

provisions included in Government Decision no. 2139/2004 and in their approved 

Catalogue, considering the actual conditions of use within the Company, as follows: 
 

Asset       Years 

Buildings 10 -50 

Technical installations and cars 3 -10 

Other plant, tools and furniture   3 -10 
 

Land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite life.  

According to Government Emergency Ordinance no. 34/April 11th, 2009, from May 1st, 

2009 the monthly fiscal depreciation included on deductible expenses, related to 

favourable value differences arising from revaluations carried out after January 1st, 2004, is 

treated as a non-deductible item from a fiscal perspective (similar to items related to 

income). 
 

(3) Sale / disposal of tangible assets 
 

Tangible assets which are no longer necessary for the business performance are 

decommissioned and written off, together with the amortization accumulated up to the 

decommissioning date, and recorded in an off-balance sheet account, until they are 

capitalized by sale or disposal.  Any gain or loss resulting from such operation is included 

in the current income statement. Revaluation reserves related to decommissioned and fully 

amortized tangible assets are transferred on the decommissioning date to "Reserves 

representing the surplus from revaluation reserves". 
 

E Impairment of assets 
 

At each year-end, tangible and intangible assets are reconciled with the results of the 

annual count. For this purpose, the carrying value is compared with the value established 

on stock-count, referred as the annual count value. If this value is lower than the net stock-

count and carrying value, the differences are accounted for as additional amortisation and 

amortisation for assets where depreciation is irreversible, or as an adjustment for 

depreciation, where depreciation is reversible. The annual count value is determined based 

on the asset’s utility, condition and market value.  
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The last stock count was carried out in January 2015, having as reference the balances 

registered as at November 30th, 2014. 

 

F Financial fixed assets 

 
Classification 
 
The Company classifies the financial fixed assets in its portfolio in the following categories: 
 

(1) Financial fixed assets with fixed maturity, acquired with the purpose declared as at the date 
of acquisition, of being held until maturity, are included in fixed assets (presented in A III 
category “Financial fixed assets” included in the balance sheet) at the date of acquisition, if 
their maturity exceeds 1 year from the date of acquisition, or in current assets if their maturity 
is less than 1 year (Note 6G). 
 

(2) Financial assets acquired for an indefinite period, but which may be sold at any time as a 
result of favourable fluctuations in price, for the purpose of obtaining profit or for 
obtaining cash, are classified on the acquisition date as financial assets available for sale 
(presented in category A III “Financial fixed assets” in the balance sheet). This category 
includes shares from initial portfolio as further defined within the "Evaluation" chapter 
entry 1(i), free shares and shares acquired from the market. Shares held with affiliated 
entities and participating interests are included in this category. 
 
Classification of the financial assets in these two categories is made on the acquisition date. 
The Company reviews this classification on a regular basis, when conditions change 
significantly from those that existed on the acquisition date. 

 
Recognition  

 
Financial fixed assets are recognized in the financial statements at the date of settlement, 
i.e. the date the investment is actually delivered to or by the Company. 

 
Evaluation  
 

(1) At acquisition 
 

(i) Financial investments held until maturity and shares acquired from the market are 
initially measured at acquisition cost. 
 
Shares from initial portfolio are recognized at the nominal value of the shares. 
 
The initial portfolio contains the shares held by the Company as at the date of its 
set-up as a financial investment company based on Law no. 133/1996, by 
transforming the Private Property Fund (set-up under Law no. 58/1995) after the 
finalization of the mass privatization process carried out based on Law no. 
55/1995. 
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According to Law no. 133/1996, based on which the Company was set-up, its 

original share capital was created by aggregating the coupons subscribed by 

citizens who chose this Company and coupons whose value was established by the 

Romanian Government by considering the value of all Romanian companies, 

which were subject to the mass privatization process performed in accordance with 

Law no. 55/1995.  
 

The value of the initial portfolio evaluated at nominal value was higher than the 

initial share capital and, consequently, the positive difference which arose was 

recorded in equity through the account "Reserves from assessment of SIF initial 

portfolio". These reserves were created as protection for the initial share capital. 
 

(ii) Free shares resulting from increases in the share capital of the issuer are 

recognized at acquisition at the nominal issuance value, as assets with 

corresponding credit in shareholders’ equity; 

 

(2) At the end of the period  

 

(i) Financial fixed assets kept until maturity are valued at amortized cost;  

 

(ii) Shares are assessed on an annual basis at initial value less accumulated 

impairment adjustments for value losses.  

 

As at December 31st, 2013, when the most recent inventory took place, the inventory value 

considered in order to determine the provisions for value losses was established according to the 

internal inventory procedure approved in October 2009 and revised in June 2013, as follows: 

 

a) For securities traded on a regulated market, the inventory value is determined based on the 

transaction price of the last transaction of the year (provided that there were transactions 

during the year); otherwise they are treated as non-listed securities. 

b) For non-listed securities, the inventory value is determined using the net asset value of the 

issuing companies disclosed in the last financial reporting required by the Ministry of 

Finance, as specified in the Internal procedure aligned with NSC Regulations 23/December 

20th, 2012. 
  

Starting with financial exercise 2013, upon the inventory of non-traded securities, when 

establishing the inventory value, the weight of securities will not be calculated in accordance to 

control, as provided by NSC Regulations 15/2004; instead, the book value per share shall be used, 

as resulted from the last annual financial statement of the issuer, drawn up according to the current 

accounting regulations, applying the evaluation methodology provided by the NSC under no. 

23/December 20th, 2012, adapted in the valuation methodology provided in the internal procedure 

regarding the drafting of a company's asset and debt statement and the internal inventory 

procedure, duly adapted, respectively. 
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6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRINCIPLES AND METHODS (CONTINUED) 

 

(iii) Shares from initial portfolio and related free shares are assessed on a portfolio 

basis. Thus, if the value resulted after portfolio valuation at the end of the period 

(stock value) is lower than the initial portfolio value (nominal value), this value 

loss is recognized in shareholders’ equity by adjusting the reserve from the initial 

portfolio valuation (at nominal value recorded at company incorporation). 

Otherwise, no adjustment for value loss is recorded. If the unfavourable value 

differences arising from the valuation of this portfolio of shares are higher than the 

total favourable differences and the reserve from initial portfolio valuation, the 

adjustment for value loss is recognized in shareholders’ equity. 

 

(iv) In the case of shares acquired free of charge, as a result of increasing the share 

capital of the issuer, by using internal reserves as increasing source, recognized at 

acquisition in shareholders’ equity, the adjustment for value loss is recognized in 

shareholders’ equity. 

 

(v) For shares acquired through investments (for a price), value adjustments were 

directly recorded in the previous years with effect on the income statement) were 

recorded directly through shareholders’ equity (starting with 2008), in account 

"Reserves from adjustments for value losses of financial fixed assets". 

  

The accounting policy for impairment booking was changed, beginning with financial year 

2008, to record the impairment for value losses directly in shareholders’ equity in 

accordance with N.S.C. Order 11/2009. Upon the sale of financial fixed assets, the reversal 

of impairment is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account or Shareholders’ Equity to the 

extent of the impairment previously recognized. 

The determination of the impairment adjustments for value losses is carried out annually, 

based on the results of the inventory. 

 

Derecognition 

 

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company loses control over contracting rights 

related to that asset. 

 

Derecognition of sold financial assets is done at the settlement date or at the date of 

transfer of ownership.  Gains or losses realized at derecognition are computed based on the 

historical cost of the financial asset and are recorded in the profit and loss account. 

 

Derecognition of financial assets held in the portfolio is performed at each disposal, using 

the FIFO principle (first-in, first-out). 
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G Short-term financial investments 

 

These include shares and other securities purchased for gaining profit in a short term.  

Short-term investments that are traded on a regulated market are valued at the bid value 

on the last trading day of the year, and short-term investments that are not traded are 

carried at acquisition cost less the adjustments for value loss. 

At June 30th, 2015, the Company hold financial instruments classified as short-term 

financial investments, the amounts placed in bank deposits with a maturity of less than 

three months being registered as amounts available in bank accounts. 

 

H Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at cost in the balance sheet. For the purpose of the 

cash-flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank accounts, cash 

in transit and short-term financial investments with an original maturity of up to 3 months. 

 

I Share capital 

 

Ordinary shares are classified as shareholders’ equity. 

 
 

J Trade payables  
 

Trade payables are recorded at the value of the amounts payable for the goods or services 

received.  
 

K Provisions for litigations, risks, expenses and taxes 
 

(1) Provisions for litigations. 

In case of litigations pending with relevant courts and for which, at the balance date, there 

are indications that the court decisions could be unfavorable to the company, the probable 

sums that the company will need to pay are registered as provision expenses. 

(2) Provisions for risks and expenses 

Provisions for risks and expenses are recognized when the Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a 

reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.  

 

This category also includes the estimation of the provision regarding the personnel's profit 

participation fund provision. 
 
(3) Provisions for taxes 
The provision for the profit tax is computed by applying the rate provided by the tax 
legislation on the accumulated reserves (included in the shareholders’ equity) related to the 
initial portfolio, the reserves related to shares received free of charge, the reserves related 
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to the input value of fixed assets to the share capital of other companies and reserves from 
the revaluation surplus resulted from untaxed revaluation differences. 
The constitution and regularization of the profit tax provision is carried out in 
consideration of the appropriate reserve account (see note 2). 
 

L Employee benefits 
 

In the normal course of business, the Company makes payments to the health, risk and 

accident funds, indemnities and annual leave, salary debts coverage as well as to the 

pension and unemployment state funds on behalf of its employees, managers with 

mandate contract and of the managers/members of the company members of the 

Supervisory Board (S.B.), at statutory rates provided by law, all these people being 

members of the Romanian State pension plan. These costs are recognized in the income 

statement as incurred together with the related salary costs and / or remuneration granted.  

The Company does not operate any other pension scheme or post-retirement benefit plan 

and, consequently, has no further obligation in respect of pensions. 
Apart from salaries and other salary-related rights, according to the collective labour 
contract, members of the Executive Board/managers with mandate contract and 
employees of the Company are entitled to incentives from the fund of participation in 
profit. Details regarding the profit participation fund and the incentives granted from this 
fund are presented in note 2 - Provisions and note 8 - Information regarding employees 
and members of the administration, management and supervision bodies. 
 

M Taxation 
 

Current income tax 

The Company records current income tax based on the taxable income disclosed in the tax 

statements, in accordance with the relevant tax legislation (see note 10 C).  
 

N Revenue recognition 

 
Revenues recorded by the Company are accounted for according to their nature, being 
recognized as per of N.S.C. Regulation no. 4/2011, specific to each category of revenues, 
and taking into account the following treatments: 
 

(1) Revenue from financial fixed assets 
 
Dividends due from portfolio companies are recognized during the financial year when the 
general meeting of shareholders of the company in which these investments are held 
decides on the distribution of dividends, as at registration date (or, as appropriate, at 
reference date)  which gives the right to receive dividends and this is the moment when the 
Company acquires the right to receive dividends proportionally with the investment held in 
that company or, in certain cases, as a priority dividend (if shares do not carry any voting 
rights) and they are accounted for as “Revenue from financial fixed assets”.  
Revenues from dividends are registered at net value, resulted (where applicable) after the 
deduction of the dividend tax, calculated and withheld at the source. 
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(2) Revenue from transactions   
 
Revenues from sales of securities are recognized when the Company has transferred 
property rights related to the securities from the seller to the purchaser, using settlement 
date accounting. 
Revenues from sales of equity securities are recognized at gross value (at transaction value) 
and those arising from short-term financial investment transactions are shown on a net 
basis (i.e. difference between sale revenues and cost). 
 
The sale value of the shares from initial portfolio and the cost of shares (the nominal value 
of the shares) are recognized in the income statement. The related reserve is not released 
upon the sale of the shares and will continue to be recognized in shareholders’ equity, being 
used when removing from portfolio the companies for which the bankruptcy procedure was 
concluded and the respective company did not recover, by liquidation, the value of the 
investment held in the initial portfolio and/or in the case of certain decreases in 
investments held in the initial portfolio, as effect of some regularizations (with Authority 
for State Assets Recovery, currently A.S.A.R., internal losses etc.). 
The revenue related to the shares received free of charge, registered upon receipt as assets 
with a corresponding credit in shareholders’ equity, is recognized in the current income 
statement, and the related reserve is released from shareholders’ equity, without affecting 
the costs and the income statement. 

 

The revenue related to the shares received free of charge (by profit incorporation), 

registered upon receipt as assets with a corresponding credit in revenues from non-current 

financial assets, is recognized in the current Statement of income, and the value assigned 

upon receipt (nominal) is recorded in costs for the period, as tax non-deductible expenses. 
 
(3) Interest income 

 

Interest income is recognized periodically and proportionally as the respective revenue is 

generated, on an accountancy engagement basis. 

 

Interest income also includes income generated from spreading the discount for assets 

acquired at a value lower than the settlement amount at maturity and for premiums 

generated by debt recorded at an amount higher than the settlement amount at maturity.   

 

O Enforcement of accounting regulations compliant with European Directives 

 

The N.S.C. Order no. 13/2011 for the approval of the N.S.C. Regulation no. 4/2011 regarding the 

Accounting regulations compliant with the 4th Directive of the European Economic Communities 

applicable to entities authorized, regulated and monitored by the National Securities Commission 

came into force during financial exercise 2011. The mentioned Order abrogates Order no. 75/2005.  

Starting with the financial exercise 2011, the Company prepares individual financial statements in 

compliance with the Specific accounting regulations presented in the N.S.C. Regulation no. 4/2011 

approved through N.S.C. Order no. 13/2011. 
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Instruction no. 6/2011, approved by the N.S.C. Order no. 116/2011, as further amended and 

supplemented by Instruction 1/2013 approved by Order 1/15.05.2013 issued by the FSA 

Commission for financial exercises 2011, 2012 and 2013 establishes the obligation for preparing, 

for informative purposes, within 180 days from the end of the each financial year, the second set of 

financial statements in accordance with IFRS, through the restatement of the information from the 

individual financial statements prepared in accordance with the Accounting regulations in 

accordance with the IVth Directive of European Economic Communities. 
 

According to this instruction, the Company prepared this second set of financial statements, as 

follows: 

 for financial exercise 2011, the Company sent to NSC and Bucharest Stock Exchange 

(“BVB”) and published on its website, within the deadline provided by the Measures issued 

by the NSC under no. 14/21.06.2012, this second set of annual individual financial 

statements, in accordance to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 

audited by its statutory auditor, PRICEWATERHOUSE COOPERS AUDIT SRL. 

In relation to these statements, the company published the Current Report on September 

26th, 2012. 

 for financial exercise 2012, the Company sent to FSA and BVB and published on its 

website, within the deadline provided by the NSC Instruction no. 6/2011, as further 

amended and supplemented by FSA Instruction no. 1/2013, the second set of annual 

individual financial statements in accordance to IFRS, accompanied by the Report of the 

Statutory Financial Auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SRL.  

In relation to these statements, the company published the Current Report on June 28th, 

2013.  

 for financial exercise 2013, the Company sent to FSA and BVB and published on its 

website, within the deadline provided by the NSC Instruction no. 6/2011, as further 

amended and supplemented by FSA Instruction no. 1/2013, the second set of annual 

individual financial statements in accordance to IFRS, accompanied by the Report of the 

statutory financial auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SRL. In relation to these 

statements, the company published the Current Report on June 30th, 2014. 

 for financial exercise 2014, the Company sent to FSA and BVB and published on its 

website, within the deadline provided by the NSC Instruction no. 6/2011, as further 

amended and supplemented by FSA Instruction no. 1/2013, the second set of annual 

individual financial statements in accordance to IFRS, accompanied by the Report of the 

statutory financial auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SRL. In relation to these 

statements, the company published the Current Report on June 30th, 2015. 

 

With respect to preparing the consolidated financial statements, we would like to state that, 

according to N.S.C. Decisions no. 249/December 3rd, 2007, 1068/May 22nd, 2008 and 

1176/September 15th, 2010, the Financial Investment Companies (SIF)- entities registered with 

N.S.C. (currently FSA) in the AOPC category, with a diversified investment policy, (which meet the 

conditions provided in item 3 of the accounting regulations approved by N.S.C. Order 74/2005 

(repealed on January 1st, 2011), prepare, by August 31st of next year consolidated annual financial 

statements, starting with the financial year 2007, in compliance with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards, adopted by the European Union. 
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Based on the notification sent by the Company regarding its classification within the exceptions 

mentioned in item 20 of the accounting regulations approved by NSC Order no. 74/2005 on the 

exclusions from consolidation, NSC issued on July 17th, 2008 the Certificate no. 238, though which 

it takes notice of the Company’s classification (and of SIFs in general) in the exceptions mentioned. 

 

The conditions mentioned in the previous accounting regulations, applicable until December 31st, 

2010, are currently set down at art. 24 of Regulation no.3/2011 regarding the Accounting 

regulations compliant with the 4th Directive of the European Economic Communities applicable to 

entities authorized, regulated and supervised by the National Securities Commission (currently 

FSA), regulation approved through N.S.C. Order no. 13/2011 and entered into force beginning with 

the financial year 2011.  

The Company issued and published the Current Reports of August 7th, 2008, November 3rd, 2008, 

August 31st, 2009, August 30th, 2010, September 9th, 2011, September 10th, 2012, August 27th, 2013 

and August 25th, 2014, through which it informed the public of the experimental preparation of the 

consolidated unaudited financial statements, which were sent to the NSC/BVB and posted on the 

Company’s website. 

 

Through further reports, the company will continue to bring to the public’s notice any information 

considered relevant regarding the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the 

individual financial statements in accordance with the IFRS. 

 

7 STAKES HELD AND FINANCING SOURCES 

 

(1) Apart from the shares related to the subscribed and paid-in share capital, the Company has 

not issued any investment certificates, other securities and/or convertible bonds. 

(2) Subscribed and paid-in share capital doubled as per EGMS Decision 1/April 28th, 2014. 

Thus, at June 30th, 2014, the paid-in share capital is RON 218,428,666.40, being issued 

and circulating 2,184,286,664 shares. All issued shares are ordinary, carry equal voting 

rights and are quoted on the Bucharest Stock Exchange in 1st Category, under symbol SIF3. 

The Company has a high degree of shareholding dispersion, with more than 7 million 

shareholders, natural and legal persons, resident and non-resident. 

According to the situation received from the CENTRAL DEPOSITORY, as at July 7th, 2015, 

the shares issued by the company and currently in circulation were held by 6,998,954, 

shareholders, of which 6,998,558 natural persons holding 1,554,450,558 shares (71.17% of 

the capital) and 396 legal entities holding 629,836,106 shares (28.83% of the capital), thus: 
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Shareholders No. of 

shareholders 

No. of shares 

 held 

Weight in the 

company’s   

share capital 

(%) 

A. Resident shareholders, 

total, out of which: 

 

6,996,718 

 

2,020,803,255 

 

92.52 

- natural persons 6,996,368 1,525,350,303 69.83 

- legal persons 350 495,452,952 22.68 

B. Non-resident shareholders, 

total, out of which: 

 

2,236 

 

163,483,409 

 

7.48 

- natural persons 2,190 29,100,255 1.33 

- legal persons 46 134,383,154 6.15 

TOTAL, out of which: 6,998,954 2,184,286,664 100.00 

- natural persons 6,998,558 1,554,450,558 71.17 

- legal persons 396 629,836,106 28.83 

 

 

 For comparison to last year, we mention that as at June 30th, 2014, the circulating shares 

issued by the Company were held by 7,022,874 shareholders, out of which 7,022,436 

natural persons and 438 legal entities, thus: 

 

 

Shareholders No. of 

shareholders 

No. of shares 

 held 

Weight in the 

company’s   

share capital 

(%) 

A. Resident shareholders, 

total, out of which: 

 

7,020,740 

 

952,209,184 

 

87.19 

- natural persons 7,020,367 765,483,516 70.09 

- legal persons 373 186,725,668 17.10 

B. Non-resident 

shareholders, total, out of 

which: 

 

2,134 

 

139,934,148 

 

12.81 

- natural persons 2,069 11,951,430 1.09 

- legal persons 65 127,982,718 11.72 

TOTAL, out of which: 7,022,874 1,092,143,332 100.00 

- natural persons 7,022,436 777,434,946 71.18 

- legal persons 438 314,708,386 28.82 

 

(3) According to Law no. 297/2004 on capital market, as further amended and supplemented, 

the voting rights are suspended for the shares held by shareholders, individually and /or in 

concert, which exceed 5% of the share capital, shareholders in this situation are forced to 

sell the shares which exceed the threshold limit within 3 months from the moment this 

limit has been exceeded. 
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 Before each general meeting of shareholders, the Company prepares the list of 

shareholders owning individually and/ or in concert more than 5% of the share capital and 

the suspended voting rights, which is sent to N.S.C. and to the Central Depository and 

published on the Company's website under “G.M.S.” Section. 

 

For the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders convened for April 28th/29th , 2015, 

having as reference date March 30th, 2015, no shareholders exceeding the 5% limit were 

registered, so that the total number of voting rights was equal to the number of issued 

shares, each share giving the right to one vote. 

 

We mention that, for the enforcement of the provisions of article 2861 of Law 297/2004 on 

capital market, as further amended and supplemented, the NSC issued and published the 

Instruction 6/2012, which must be known by all investors in shares issued by the Financial 

Investment Companies. 

 

(4) At the end of the first half of 2015, the Company has no redeemable shares. 

(5) The company has not issued any bonds and has no such liabilities to report in the 

individual  financial statements drawn up for the 1st half of the 2015 financial exercise. 

 

8 INFORMATION REGARDING THE EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 

 

(1) Indemnities and other salary rights granted to the members of the Executive Board and 

Supervisory Board. 

During the 1st half of the 2015 financial exercise, the Company granted and recorded as 

expenses the amount of RON 2,091,414, representing salary rights due to the members of 

the Supervisory Board and of the Executive Board.  

 

 (2) The Company has no liabilities contracted regarding the payment of pensions to its former 

members of the executive board and managers; therefore it has no such commitments 

recorded in its accounting.  

 

 (3) The Company did not grant credit or advance payments (except for salary advances and/or 

to cover travel expenses) to the members of the Supervisory and Executive Boards, and it 

has no such obligations recorded in its accounting as at the end of the 1st half of the 2015 

financial exercise.  



SIF TRANSILVANIA SA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30th, 2015 

40 

8 INFORMATION REGARDING THE EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 (4) Employees 

 

 Education Average number  

 (S = superior) 

(M = medium) 

cumulated at  

June 30th, 

Employees category                               (G = general) 2014 2015 

    

Total employees, out of which: (S, M, G) 59 51 

- managers of divisions, managers of 

branch offices and compliance officer S 4 3 

- head of departments S 11 8 

- production staff, total, out of which: x 28 31 

- with superior education S 27 29 

- with medium education M 1 2 

- administration staff, total, out of 

which: 

 

x 

 

16 

 

 9 

- with medium education M 14  7 

- with general education G 2 2 
 
Operating as a self-managed company, on the 1st half of the financial year 2015, the average number 
of employees was 52, the actual number of employees registered as at June 30th 2015 being of 51, 
thus 8 employees less as opposed to the number of employees registered as at June 30th, 2014 (59 
employees).  
Salary rights paid or payable to employees for the activity performed in the reporting period, 
amounting to RON 2,469,247 are recorded as company expenses. 

 
According to the law, the expenses covered by the Company in the 1st half of the financial exercise 
of 2015, regarding social security contributions, insurance contributions for work accidents and 
professional illness, contribution to the unemployment fund, contribution to health insurance, 
contribution for annual leave and indemnities and contribution to the fund for granting salary 
indemnities due for the employees, amounted to RON 1,013,426.  

 
Under these circumstances, the total expenses with the Company personnel mentioned under 
paragraphs (1) and (4), cumulated with the afferent social contributions, amounted to RON 
5,574,087 (row 23 in the profit and loss account form), out of which RON 4,560,661 salaries and 
similar expenses and RON 1,013,426 social contribution borne by the company, related to all the 
rights granted.     

 
The Company has not assumed liabilities for pension plans, other than for State plan, provided by 
Law no. 263/2010 on the unitary public pension system, as further amended and supplemented.  
 
We would also like to state that, within a limit of 2% of the salary expenses, according to the Labour 
Code and the Collective Labour Agreement, in the reporting period other social rights were paid to 
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employees, amounting to RON 39,800, which are registered on the company’s expenses under 
“Other operating expenses”. 

 

Payables related to personnel, unpaid as at June 30th, 2015 are presented in Notes 5 and 18, while 

the receivables related to personnel are disclosed in Notes 5 and 14. 
 
9 ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN ECONOMIC-FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

1 Liquidity ratios 

 

(a) Current asset ratio: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

Current assets   = 0.29 0.64 

Current liabilities 

 

 

(b) Quick liquidity ratio: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

Current assets - Inventories = 0.29 0.64 

      Current liabilities 

 

 

(c) Cash ratio: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (%) (%) 

 

Cash and bank accounts + Short-term investments x 100 = 18.81 0,42 

                        Current liabilities 

 

2 Risk ratios 

 

(a) Debt ratio: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

     Total liabilities                0.09 0.10 

     Total assets 

 

(b) Solvency ratio: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

     Total assets                10.73 9.80 

     Current liabilities 
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3 Activity ratios (management ratios): 

 

(a) Receivables turnover x) June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (days) (days) 

 

Average receivable balance                   x 180 days = 53.55 43.86 

Income from current activity (turnover) 

 

(b) Non-current assets turnover:  June 30th 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

Income from current activity (turnover) = 0.02 0.10 
             Non-current assets 
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9 ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN ECONOMIC-FINANCIAL RATIOS (CONTINUED) 

 

(c) Total assets turnover: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (ratio) (ratio) 

 

Income from current activity (turnover) = 0.019 0.092 
                  Total assets 

 
 

4 Profitability ratios: 

 

(a) Return on capital employed:  June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 % % 

 

 Gross result                x 100   = 1.01 5.37 

Capital employed (shareholders’ equity) 

 

(b) Return on assets: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 % % 

 

     Net profit           x 100      0.85 4.24 

     Total assets 

 

(c) Return on equity: June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 % % 

    Net profit           x 100      1.01 4.98 

   Shareholders' equity 

 
 

5 Ratios concerning earnings per share: 

 

(a) Earnings per share (EPS): June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON/share) (RON/share) 

 

   Result for the financial year   (net profit)      = 0.0039 0.020 
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
        existing during the period 

 
 
 

(b) Price/earnings ratio (P/E):  June 30th, 2014 June 30, 2015 

               (ratio)  (ratio) 

   
Average market price of the share  

   (last trading day of the period xx))  -   RON  = 79.56 12.2 

Earnings per share at the end of the reporting period – RON 
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9 ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN ECONOMIC-FINANCIAL RATIOS (CONTINUED) 
  
(c)         Return on investment:               June 30th, 2014                June 30th, 
2015 

               (%)  (%) 
 
           (1)  Net assets per share xxx) x 100 =  170.68 203.86 
                  Share trading price 
 
 
          (2)  Net profit/loss per share x 100 =  1.26 8.35 
                  Share trading price 
 
Notes: 
x)  In the case of the ratio “receivable turnover from clients”, total receivables (therefore receivables 

representing debtors from dividends due and not cashed from companies in the portfolio, include 

not only the receivables in the account “clients”). 
xx) Average trading price as at June 30th, 2015 = RON 0.2441/share. 
xxx) Calculated according to the Internal Procedure harmonized with the NSC Measures under no. 

23/2012. 

SIF 3 shares opening price January 5th, 2015 = RON 0.2454 

SIF 3 shares closing price June 30th, 2015 = RON 0.2460 
 
10 OTHER INFORMATION 

 
A Information regarding the company 

 

The Company was incorporated as a financial investment company in Romania as per Law no. 

133/1996 and Law no. 31/1990, by transformation of the former Fondul Proprietatii Private III 

Transilvania under the name Societatea de Investitii Financiare Transilvania SA. (“SIF Transilvania 

SA”) 

 
The Company was set-up with the purpose of collective investments, investing cash resources in 
financial instruments and operating on the principle of risks diversification and prudential 
management.  

 
S.I.F. TRANSILVANIA S.A. is a closed-end financial investment company included in the category 
of “other collective investment undertakings” (AOPC), with a diversified investment policy, set up 
by Articles of Incorporation, being registered with:  

 

(i) Braşov Trade Register Office, under no. J 08/3306/1992 and fiscal code 3047687; 

(ii) Ministry of Finance under Fiscal Registration Code (C.I.F.): RO 3047687; 
(iii) FSA (National Securities Commission – Securities Recording Department), with 

certificate no. 401/August 20th, 1999 and no. 401/July 12th, 2007, as AOPC with a 
diversified investment policy, by certificate no. 258/December 14th, 2005, in the 
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National Securities Commission. Record in section 9 - Closed-end investment 
companies, under no. PJR09SIIR/080004, by certificate no. 146/March 6th, 2006. 

(iv) Private Data Operator registered under no. 22940. 
 
The Company is both an A.O.P.C. and a trading company whose shares are admitted on a 
regulated market (Bucharest Stock Exchange). Therefore the Company is subject both to 
special requirements of Law no.297/2004 on capital market and to the regulations issued 
by NSC/FSA in the application of this law and to the general provisions of the Law no. 
31/1990 R on trading companies, with subsequent amendments and supplements. 

 
The Company's registered office is located in: Braşov Municipality, 2 Nicolae Iorga Street, 
postcode 500057. 
 
The main activity domain of the Company is CAEN Code 649 – other financial service 
activities, except insurance activities and pension funds. 

 

The main activity of the Company is provided under CAEN code Rev. 2 - 6499 other 

financial service activities not elsewhere classified. 

 

10 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

 

Secondary activities of the Company, according to the articles of incorporation and CAEN 

Code Rev. 2, are as follows: 
(i) 6420 – Activities of holdings; 
(ii) 6430 – Mutual funds and other similar financial entities. 
In order to carry out its activity, the Company has one branch office in Bucharest 
Municipality. According to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company may establish, based 
on decision of the Executive Board, and with the approval of the Supervisory Board, should 
it be in the company’s interest, branches, subsidiaries, agencies, representations, as well as 
work offices, in the country or abroad, by observing the legal requirements for 
authorization and publicity.  
 

Starting with January 2014, the depository services for financial instruments held in the 

portfolio are provided based on a contract (approved by FSA) by BRD-GROUPE SOCIETE 

GENERALE, headquartered in Bucharest, registered with the special FSA register under 

no. PJR10DEPR/400007. 

 

The regulated market on which the shares issued by the Company are traded is the 

Bucharest Stock Exchange – First Tier, under the symbol SIF 3.  

 

The record of shareholders and the shares held by them is kept based on a contract, in 

accordance with legal provisions, by the depository and independent register company 

Depozitarul Central SA (former Regisco S.A.), having Tax code RO9638020 and head-

office at 34–36 Carol I Boulevard, IBC Modern Building, floors 3, 8, and 9, 2nd District, 

Bucharest. Depozitarul Central is authorised by the NSC through Incorporation Decision 

no. 1407/June 20th, 2006 and Decision on Operation no. 3567/December 14th, 2006. We 
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would like to inform shareholders that the operations required to the depositary regarding 

the issuance of holding statements, account history, account summaries, confidential code 

lists, personal data modifications and registrations of direct property transfers are to be 

requested from this company. 
 
The (statutory) financial audit is carried out by the (statutory) financial auditor 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit SRL, appointed by the OGSM Decision no. 1/April 20th, 

2013 for three more years, namely from May 1st, 2013 to April 30th, 2016. 

 

The individual financial statements drawn up for the 1st half of 2015 are not audited, as 

only annual financial statements must be audited. 

 

The financial statements prepared for 2014 (as those for 2013) were audited by this 

auditor. 

Within the conditions provided by the Articles of Incorporation, the internal audit is 

carried out as per the Agreement concluded with MOONLIGHT S.R.L. Brasov. 

 
According to NSC Instruction 2/2011 regarding the audit of IT systems used by entities 
authorized, regulated and monitored by the NSC, currently FSA, the company received in 
2012, from the RINA SIMTEX certification organism the Information Security 
Management System certification (SMSI), as per the requirements of Standard SR 150/CEI 
27001:2006. 

 

B Information regarding the relationship of the Company with entities in which 

it holds investments 

 

S.I.F. Transilvania is constantly preoccupied to offer to its shareholders and investors an 

information characterized by rigour, homogeneity and quality, through quarterly, half year 

and annual reporting and through current reporting prepared according to the applicable 

law. These reports can be consulted on the Company's website at: www.siftransilvania.ro. 

These financial statements refer to the activity performed by SIF Transilvania SA during 

the first half of 2015, as a financial investment company, included in the category of other 

collective investment undertakings (AOPC) with a diversified investment policy.  

The relationship between the Company and the companies in which it holds investments is 

that between a shareholder and the issuer of shares, in accordance with Law no. 31/1990, 

republished, as further amended and supplemented. Any transaction performed with a 

portfolio company takes place based on the arm’s length transactions principle, at market 

value. 

 
C Information regarding income tax 

 

According to the provisions of the Fiscal Code, in force for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared, the income tax is computed and recorded in the 

accounting records on a monthly basis and declared quarterly to the relevant tax authority. 
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We bring to the attention of the shareholders that based on the FSA Instruction no.1/2014 

measures for the IFRS transition have been commenced as of January 1st, 2015. 

Considering that this transition involves a delay in the performance in due time of the 

financial statements for the 1st quarter of 2015, the company has requested for the period 

2015-2016, to apply the advance payment system provided by fiscal code in force, for the 

avoidance of errors in establishing the tax due for the first half of 2015. Subsequently, the 

decision for the transition to IFRS has been delayed for January 1st, 2016, but the advance 

payment system for the tax related to the 2015-2016 period remained in force, for the 

performance of the due tax annual payment regularization.  

 

Compared to the 1st half of 2014, when the company registered a profit of RON 8,473,809, 

in the 1st semester of 2015, the company registered a gross profit amounting to RON 

47,915,063. The payment obligation related to this gross profit is of RON 3,375,694.  

According to the calculation method of the due tax in the advance payment system, for the 

1st half of 2015, the company must pay to the state budget the amount of RON 1,687,847. 
 

D Total revenues from current activity (turnover) 

For financial investment companies, total revenues from current activity are the equivalent 

of the turnover. 

For the period under review, total revenues from current activity compared to similar 

previous period are presented in note 4. 

 

E Explanations regarding the value and nature of extraordinary revenues and 

expenses, and of deferred income and prepaid expenses  

 
In the 1st half of the 2015 financial exercise, the Company did not record any extraordinary 
revenues and expenses, all the revenues and expenses being related to current activities. 
As at June 30th, 2015, the Company did not record any deferred income. Prepaid expenses 
as at June 30th, 2015, amounting to RON 246,550, represent mainly anticipated payment of 
local taxes and duties, commissions for the maintenance of the shares issued by the 
Company at the Bucharest Stock Exchange quota, advance payments for subscriptions with 
various publications in 2015, expenses for the insurance of the members of the Supervisory 
and Executive Boards, as well as insurance of portfolio goods through insurance 
companies, for events which might take place in the following period. 
These expenses are included each month, in the afferent share, in the operating and 
functioning expenses of the financial year during which the insured service is actually 
performed. 

 
F Information regarding lease payments 

 
In the 1st half of the financial exercise of 2015, the Company had no financial leasing 
contracts concluded. 

 
G Fees paid to financial auditors, as well as fees in relation to other certification 

services, tax advisory services and other non-audit services  
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The internal and external financial audit activities were carried out based on service 
contracts concluded with financial auditors, members of the Chamber of Financial 
Auditors of Romania and authorized by the FSA. 
 
For the services of auditing the statutory financial statements for 2014 provided during the 
first quarter of 2015, the company paid fees amounting to RON 304,476 (excluding VAT), 
to which VAT was paid at the rate provided by law.  
 
In the same period, for other services than those of auditing the statutory financial 
statements, mainly for internal audit services, SMSI audit, legal counseling and trials, the 
company paid fees amounting to RON 1,181,224 (excluding VAT), to which VAT was paid 
at the rate provided by law. 

 
E Trade bills 

 
The Company does not have any bills of exchange recorded in its portfolio. 

 
I Information regarding repayment of debt that exceeds the amounts 

received 

 
The Company did not contract any bank loans. 

 
J Contingent debt and commitments undertaken, including security 
commitments  

 
The Company does not have any commitments undertaken in favour of third parties or 
mortgaged and / or pledged assets. The Company management is not aware of the 
existence of contingent debt which was not accounted for and disclosed in the individual 
financial statements prepared for the 1st half of the financial year 2015. 
The Company does not have any commitments such as securities to third parties, including 
in relation to affiliated undertakings.   
 
K Transactions with affiliated entities 

 
Affiliated entities for which the company presents corresponding transactions and balances 
are entities in which the company holds stakes of at least 25% from the share capital (Art. 7 
Paragraph 1 Entry 21 of the Fiscal Code). 
 
During the 1st half of financial exercise 2015, the following transactions were performed 
with affiliated entities – Romanian legal entities, transactions disclosed in the income 
statement, as “Other expenses for current activity”: 
 

1. Hotel and protocol services amounting to RON 13,011 performed by S.C. ARO PALACE 
S.A. Braşov, a company in which we hold 85.74%. 

2. Rent for a meeting room, as well as utilities, amounting to RON 60,444, paid to S.C. API 
TRANSILVANIA S.A. Braşov, a company in which we own 99.33%. 
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3. Rent for warehouse (archive), amounting to RON 23,279, paid to S.C. 
INTERNAŢIONAL TRADE CENTER S.A. Braşov, a company in which we hold 87.30%. 

4. Services amounting to RON 23,279, paid to SIGMA S.A., company in which we hold 
95.38%. 

5. Hotel services amounting to RON 294, paid to T.H.R. MAREA NEAGRA S.A., company 
in which we hold 77.71%. 

 
All mentioned transactions were performed on the arm’s length principle. 
 
During the first half of financial year 2015, the Company did not perform any transactions 
with its members of the Supervisory and Executive Boards, employees and shareholders 
(since it has no shareholders to hold control), to be subject to reporting requirements 
provided for in art.225 of Law 297/2004 on the capital market. 
Transactions are disclosed in the income statement with line “Other expenses from current 
activity” and compared to the previous financial exercise they are disclosed as follows: 
 

 Purchases Type of transaction Financial year Financial year 

  ended as at ended as at 

 June 30th, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 
ARO PALACE S.A. Hotel services 13,011 11,096 
    
API TRANSILVANIA S.A. Rent and utilities 69,822 60,444 
INTERNATIONAL TRADE    
CENTER S.A. Rent services 23,320 23,279 
T.H.R. MAREA NEAGRA Hotel Services - 294 
TURISM FELIX S.A. Hotel services -  
SIGMA S.A. Services - 10,644 
TOTAL  106,153 105,757 

 

Income from dividends from affiliated entities is disclosed in the income statement with line 

"Income from financial assets" and compared with the previous financial exercise is disclosed as 

follows: 

 

Dividend income   Financial year ended Financial year ended 

from the following companies: as at June 30th, 2014 as at June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 
   
CRISTIANA S.A. Braşov 1,058,700 1,187,956 
TURISM FELIX 1,317,032 - 
EUXIN CONSTANTA     1,451,253 1,263,252 
EMAILUL MEDIAS 564,527 625,298 
GASTRONOM BUZĂU 461,925 369,540 
FEPER BUCUREŞTI 360,463 612,923 
TRANSILVANIA LEASING BRAŞOV 605,217 398,019 
TISMANA JUPITER 8,150 - 
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COMCM CONSTANŢA 536,200 321,720 
INDEPENDENTA SIBIU - 1,599,024 
TOTAL 6,363,467 6,377,732 

  

Income from interests afferent to bonds held in affiliated entities, including those for the amounts 

transferred with this purpose, are presented in the income statement, under "Interests" and, in 

comparison to the same period of last financial exercise, are disclosed as follows: 

 

Interest income Financial year ended Financial year ended 

from the company: as at June 30th, 2014 as at June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 
ROMRADIATOARE S.A. Braşov 130,410 98,174  
ORGANE DE ASAMBLARE S.A. Braşov 121,817 98,706  
TURISM COVASNA S.A. 121,715  
TURISM LOTUS FELIX S.A. 289,123 10,915  
ORIZONT TURISM S.A. Predeal 146,805 104,597 
TUŞNAD S.A. Băile Tuşnad 137,315  
SIBAREX 57,871 44,713 

TOTAL REVENUES FROM INTERESTS 

AFFERENT TO BONDS ISSUED  1,005,056 357,105 

 

In comparison to the previous financial exercise, receivables in balance as at June 30th, 2015 

(diminished by the adjustments for depreciation), related to affiliated entities are disclosed as 

follows: 
 
Receivables from 
affiliated entities 

Type of transaction Balance as at
June 30th, 

2014  
(RON) 

Balance as at
June 30th, 

2015  
(RON) 

COMCM Dividents to be cashed - 321,720 

EMAILUL S.A. Braşov Dividents to be cashed 564,527 - 

UPRUC CTR S.A. Făgăraş Dividents to be cashed 50,000 -- 

TURISM FELIX S.A.Băile Felix Dividents to be cashed 1,317,032 - 

EUXIN S.A. Constanţa Dividents to be cashed 1,451,253 - 

TURISM COVASNA S.A. Bond interest 93,429 93,429 

TURISM LOTUS FELIX S.A. Bond interest 751,058 1,013,019 

ORGANE DE ASAMBLARE S.A. 
Braşov  

Bond interest 121,817 98,706 

ORIZONT TURISM PREDEAL  Bond interest 396,458 39,345 
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ROMRADIATOARE S.A. Braşov Bond interest 24,868 16,362 

SIBAREX S.A. Câmpineanca Bond interest 71,014 171,499 

TUŞNAD S.A. Băile Tuşnad Bond interest 445,845 - 

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 
FROM AFFILIATED ENTITIES 

x 5,287,301 1,754,080 

 
10 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

 

The Company also records as receivables from affiliated entities the gross amount of RON 97,227 

representing dividends to be cashed, for which adjustments for depreciation, in equal value, were 

created. 
 
L Contingencies 

 

(1) Litigation: 

 

The company continues to be subject to several legal actions arising in the normal course of 

business. The company management considers that they will have no material adverse effect on the 

economic results or the Company’s financial position, as they are reflected in the financial 

statements drafted for the 1st half of the financial exercise 2015. In case of litigations pending where 

there are indications that they could conclude in a non-favourable manner, litigation provisions 

have been set up last year, amounting to RON 159,577. 

In the period analyzed of the financial exercise 2015, the number of litigations in which the 

company is involved and their structure are the same as during the corresponding period of the 

previous year, the most frequent being legal actions regarding the defense of the Company’s 

corporative rights, but also the legal actions regarding other Company rights. 

 

(2) Contingent liabilities 

 

At June 30th, 2015, the Company has no contingent liabilities. 

 

(3) Onerous contracts 

 
As at June 30th, 2015, the company had no onerous contracts concluded. An onerous 

contract means a contract in which the compulsory costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed 
the economic benefits to be received under the contract. 
 
 

11 STATEMENT OF THE PORTFOLIO 
 
On June 30th, 2015, the company portfolio is as follows: 



SIF TRANSILVANIA SA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30th, 2015 

52 

 
11       STATEMENT OF THE PORTFOLIO (CONTINUED) 

 

Name Net Acquisition Market or  

 carrying carrying reimbursement  

 Value Value value Differences +/- 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 

A. Securities admitted for          

trading on a regulated market or an        

alternative trading system,        

total, out of which: 764,419,868  904,369,576 924,584,215  20,214,639

1 Bucharest Stock Exchange 475,867,274  508,749,447 551,438,848  42,689,402

2 Stock Exchange - RASDAQ 102,572,547  146,990,901 112,521,669  ‐34,469,232

3 Stock Exchange – ATS/BVB 82,706,005  139,175,199 106,762,364  ‐32,412,835

4 ATS Sibiu SIBEX Stock Exchange 92,875,914  95,963,799 145,640,826  49,677,027

5 Sibiu SIBEX Stock Exchange 783,335  2,363,895 995,463  ‐1,368,432

6 Foreign stock exchanges 3,552,798  5,053,472 4,243,217  ‐810,255

7 Fund units issued by traded        

investment funds 989,039  999,907 952,645  ‐47,262

8 Shares to receive from conversion 

of bonds 5,072,957  5,072,957 2,029,183  ‐3,043,774

B. Securities not admitted for        

trading on a regulated market or on 

an alternative trading system 
       

total, out of which: 204,729,575  219,998,643 196,596,853  ‐23,401,790

• Shares 171,003,616  179,922,090 156,877,644  ‐23,044,446

• Bonds 24,012,266  30,276,553 29,462,033  ‐814,520

• Fund units issued by        

closed-end  investment funds 9,713,694  9,800,000 10,257,176  457,176

G Other assets or financial        

instruments x) (financial fixed 

assets) 323,195  323,195 323,195  0

D. Securities admitted for trading on 

a speculative market 
       

total out of which: 9,641,586 9,641,586 8,811,083 -830,503 

1 Bucharest Stock Exchange 2,017,706 2,017,706 2,086,150 68,444 

2 Stock exchange - RASDAQ 0 0 0 0 

3 Foreign stock exchanges 2,864,456 2,864,456 2,955,565 91,109 

4 Foreign fund units exchanges 4,759,424 4,759,424 3,769,368 -990,056 

GRAND TOTAL, out of which: 808,110,609 1,134,333,001 1,130,990,864 -3,342,137 

Securities held as assets (shares) 758,357,872  1,078,218,802  1,078,480,031  261,228 
- Bonds not traded 24,012,266  30,276,553  30,137,551  ‐139,002 

-Fund units 5,072,957  5,072,957  2,029,183  ‐3,043,774 

- Shares to receive from conversion 

of bonds 10,702,733  10,799,908  11,209,821  409,914 

- Other long-term receivables 323,195  323,195 323,195  0
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- Securities admitted for          

trading on a regulated market for        

speculative purpose 9,641,586  9,641,586 8,811,083  ‐830,503

 
x) Includes bank deposits created based on the amounts deposited by employees with 

administrative responsibilities as material warranties (RON 4,195), bails paid within various 
litigations (RON 19,000) and cash contributions to share capital increases (RON 300,000);  

xx) Represent interest accrued until the end of the 1st half of 2015, recorded as revenues of the period 

and not cashed. 
 

The statement of the portfolio includes shares, fund units and other financial fixed assets in the 

balance sheet as at June 30th, 2015, at net carrying value, gross carrying value (acquisition) and at 

the value computed according to the assessment methodology from the current Internal procedure 

applicable, harmonized with the NSC Execution Order no. 23/December 20th, 2012 (market or 

reimbursement value). 

According to Internal calculation procedure, for securities traded on a regulated market or in 

systems other than regulated markets, during the past 30 days starting with March 21st, 2013, the 

market value is computed based on the closing price of the market section deemed main market or 

on the reference price provided in the case of other trading systems, and in the case of securities 

which are not traded on a regulated market or which have not been traded during the past 30 days 

of trading, the market value is calculated at the carrying value per share resulted from the last 

annual financial statement drawn up and published according to the current accounting 

regulations, by the issuers. 
 
According to their origin, portfolio shares and fund units held as financial fixed assets can be 

classified as follows: 
 Net Acquisition   

 carrying carrying Market  

     Value Value value Differences +/- 

 (RON) (RON) (RON) (RON) 
Shares from initial portfolio     
and related      
free shares 182,496,807 182,496,807 175,625,505 -6,871,302 
Shares acquired from the     
local market and related     
free shares 742,059,364 889,416,004 898,611,309 9,195,305 
Shares acquired from     
the foreign market 4,805,316 6,305,991 4,243,217 -2,062,774 
Fund units 10,702,734 10,799,907 11,209,821 409,914 
Total 940,064,221 1,089,018,709 1,089,689,852 671,143 
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Thus, investments held as financial fixed assets (shares and unit funds in the portfolio) amount to 

RON 1,089,018,709 at gross carrying amount – (historical cost). In the financial statements 

reflecting net carrying values (RON 940,064,221), the carrying amount represents the gross 

carrying value diminished by RON 148,954,488, representing adjustments for loss in value (created 

in the years before 2008 in the income statement and, from 2008, directly in shareholders’ equity) 

existing in the balance sheet as at June 30th, 2015. 

 

Unfavourable value differences resulted from the amount computed according to the methodology 

provided in the Internal calculation procedure and the gross carrying amount of shares and unit 

funds held in the portfolio as financial fixed assets, amounting to RON 671,143 as at June 30th 2015, 

are not recorded in the accounting records, as they are kept at historical cost, adjusted for value 

loss, created and outstanding at the end of the period. 
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12 STATEMENT OF BANK DEPOSITS 

 Deposit value Interest    

 Symbol Maturity Maturity Value Weight Date 

Bank name 
   

account <60 Days >60 Days % (RON)  total%  Creation  Maturity x) 

   (RON)  (RON)     
Banca Comerciala Romana (RON) 5121     817,267 - 0.43 10 2.39 30.06.2015 01.07.2015 
B.R.D.-G.S.G. (RON) 5121 32,276,029 - 0.30 269 94.50 30.06.2015 01.07.2015 
ING BANK (RON) 5121 896,107 - 0.20 5 2.62 30.06.2015 01.07.2015 

TOTAL DEPOSITS IN RON 
(NOTE 15) 5121 33,989,403 -  284 99.51 x x 
ING BANK (EUR) 5124 168,834 - 0.05 1 0.49 26.06.2015 03.07.2015 

TOTAL DEPOSITS 
  

34,158,237 
 

- 
 

0.24 
 

285 
 

100.00 
 

X 
 

X 
 

   
     

x) The last day of deposit is recorded, amounts being available in the current account of the following day. 

 

At the end of the 1st half of 2015, the total amount of bank deposits in RON amounting to RON 34,158,237, accumulated with interest due and committed, but 

not cashed by June 39th, 2015, of RON 285, was worth RON 34,158,522.  

The annual average interest rate of the bank deposits in the balance sheet as at the end of the 1st quarter of 2015 was of 0.30%. 
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 

 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

 

Domestic trade receivables (Note 5) 12,892 12,892 

Advances of services to domestic suppliers (Note 5) 17,567 18.366 

Gross trade receivables 30,459 31.258 

Adjustments for impairment of clients and bad debts (12.892) (12,892) 

Net trade receivables 17,567 18,366 

 

14 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

 

Receivables from state budget 52,980 22,055 

Receivables related to personnel       -               - 

Sundry debtors, including amounts to be cashed from  

   affiliated entities and participating interests 5,814,482 24,777,368 

Interest receivable from deposits and current accounts 2,916 304 

Total other gross receivables (Note 5) 5,900,837 24,799,727 

Adjustments for impairment of sundry debtors   

   receivables from affiliated entities  (882,329) (1,203,608) 

    and participating interests 

Total net other trade receivables, 

(rows 25 + 26 + 27 in the Statement of assets) 4,988,049 23,596,119 

 

Adjustments for the impairment of sundry debtors, receivables from affiliated entities and participation 

interests worth RON 1,203,608 refer mainly to dividends and interests receivable from portfolio 

companies.
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15 CASH AND BANK ACCOUNTS 

 

 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON)  (RON) 

 

Bank accounts in RON 106,659 26,439 

Bank accounts in foreign currency 26,313 1,217,307 

Bank deposits in RON 22,313,170 33,989,404 

Cash on hand in RON 10,386 7,173 

Other amounts 2,218 363 

Total 22,577,118 35,240,686 

 
16 SHORT TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

 

In the 1st half of the 2015 financial exercise, together with the bank deposits with a maturity of less than 

three months, presented in the Balance sheet in row 33 – Cash in hand and Bank accounts amounting to 

RON 35,240,686 and spread by Banks in Note 12, the company also has short-term financial investments 

amounting to RON 9,641,586. 

 

17 TRADE PAYABLES TO BE PAID IN ONE YEAR 

  

 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

 

Domestic suppliers of services 321,181 529,131 

Suppliers invoices not received 56,101 46,169 

TOTAL (row 39 in the Statement of assets and Note 5) 377,282 575,300 
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18 OTHER PAYABLES TO BE PAID IN ONE YEAR 
 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 
Dividends distributed from profits  
of the years before 2014 (Note 5) 76,677,316 103,401,434 
Payables related to staff (Note 5) 124,741 125,032 
Income tax (Note 5) 5,297,584 1,595,694 
Other payables to the centralized State budget (Note 5)    
Other sundry creditors and advances to clients,                                      370,620                            358,939 
amounts due to affiliated entities 
and participating interests (Note 5) 624,320 1,114,881 
Total (rows 38+41+42+43 in the Statement of assets) 83,094,581 106,595,980  
 
19 RESERVES 
 
(1) Reserves created from the value of the shares acquired free of charge 
During the 1st half of 2015, this category of reserves suffered modifications, so that the net balance as at 
June 30th, 2015 is RON 138,346,662. 
The net movement in these reserves is a decrease of RON 4,292,904, as follows: 
1) Increase by RON 820,073, representing mainly the cancellation of the tax provision afferent to the 

decrease of the reserves for free shares received free of charge after their removal from the portfolio 
(BRD, TLV, SERIBUZ, Romanian Clearing House and BANCO SANTANDER); 

2) Decrease by RON 5,112,977, representing the creation of the tax provision afferent to free shares 
received (BANCO SANTANDER) and the reserves corresponding to the shares received free of charge 
after their removal from the portfolio. 

 
(2) Reserves created from adjustments for impairment losses of financial fixed assets 
 

In the financial statements for 1st half of the 2015 financial exercise, the debit balance of the 
reserve created from adjustments for impairment losses of financial fixed assets according to the 
applicable accounting regulations (row 69, column 2 of the Balance Sheet) amounts to RON 
122,447,535 and comes from: 
(i) RON 129,387,787, representing the debt balance at the beginning of the financial year; 
(ii)  RON 6,944,599, representing the reversals registered in the analyzed period of 2015 afferent to 
the shares transferred during this period; 
(iii) RON 4,347 representing adjustments for losses calculated during January 1st – June 30th, 
2015. 

 

(3) Other reserves: 

 December 31st, 2014 June 30th, 2015 

 (RON) (RON) 

Reserves created from favorable value 

differences afferent to the contributions in kind 2,785,850 2,785,850 

Reserves created from registration of the initial 

portfolio at nominal value 120,863,468 120,863,468 

Reserves created from profit, as own financing 

sources 423,354,605 447,177,370 

Other capital reserves 3,912,094 3,912,094 

Total                                                                                               550,916,017                     574,738,782 
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Reserves created from the favourable value differences afferent to contributions in 

kind 

During the 1st half of financial exercise 2015, this reserve category did not register any changes, the 

balance registered at June 30th, 2015 being the same as the one at the beginning of the year, namely RON 

2,785,850. 

 

Reserves created from the registration of the company’s initial portfolio at nominal 

value 

 
No movements were recorded in this balance sheet during January 1st, 2015 – June 30th, 2015 
 

Reserves created from the registration of S.I.F. Transilvania’s initial portfolio at 

nominal value 
 

 
 June 30th, 2015 
 (RON) 

Balance as at January 1st, 2015 120,863,468 
Total increases, out of which: - 
Cancellation of tax provision related 
to the removed companies - 
Total decreases, out of which: - 
Removals (bankruptcy) - 
Balance as at June 30th, 2015 120,863,468 
 

20 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

 

We are not aware of any events subsequent to June 30th, 2015 that would have a material impact on the 

information disclosed in the individual financial statements prepared as at June 30th, 2015. 

 

 
Executive President/CEO, 

ec. Mihai Fercală, PhD 

 

 

Portfolio Manager        Drawn up by, 

Dragos Calin, PhD      ec. Radu Ionel, Financial Manager  
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